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Changing 
the Way 

the World 
Does 

Business



Systems Integration Systems integration includes designing systems and integrating hardwa r e, software and
c o m mu n i c a t i o n s. CSC ensures that these systems support a company ’s business goals by staying closely attuned
to each client’s environment in order to provide the strategy and consulting required to achieve those goals. M o s t
i m p o rt a n t l y, we create systems that can gr ow and evo l ve with the client’s changing requirements.We provide leading-
edge technology, best practices and methodologies. And we offer superior program management, applying skills
l e a rned building some of the largest, most complex systems in the wo rl d . Systems integration is the core of our bu s i n e s s
ex p e rtise and is the foundation on which we have built our company over the ye a r s.

O u t s o u rc i n g Outsourcing is a strategic enabler for adding value to a business and helping it gr ow. CSC helps clients
i m p r ove efficiencies, focus on core business functions, and stay current with new technologies.We provide guara n t e e d
time frames and service leve l s, and lower predictable costs with lower ri s k . While outsourcing contracts of prev i o u s
years meant mainly data center management, today these contracts have become increasingly complex and cove r
a va riety of client needs. CSC provides a full spectrum of serv i c e s, tools and resources that range from management
consulting to systems integration to computer opera t i o n s. Our flex i ble approach to outsourcing is designed to meet
our clients’ specific needs and business goals as they evo l ve and change over time.

Management and Information Technology Consulting CSC wo rks with the wo rl d ’s leading organizations
to create and implement innova t i ve solutions to their most complex problems in business opera t i o n s, technology,
s t rategy and culture. We use info rmation technology to automate and streamline processes as well as to create new
s t ra t e g i e s, markets and customer relationships for our clients. With cutting-edge approaches, we help companies
gr ow by designing and implementing change programs that energize and mobilize their entire wo rk fo r c e. C S C ’s
research programs keep us and our clients at the forefront of bu s i n e s s, management and technology issues and solutions.
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CSC operates principally in one industry segment: p r oviding management and info rmation technology consulting, systems
integration and outsourcing services to governments and industry worldwide.

What We Do

S E RV I C E S
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Our Markets

Our Services Our Solutions

CSC helps clients around the world meet the challenges they face in an increasingly competitive and fast-paced business
environment. We offer fully integrated information technology solutions incorporating a complete spectrum of services
that includes management and systems consulting, systems integration and outsourcing. We combine the best
practices, tools and technologies with industry-specific expertise to provide solutions tailored to the unique requirements
of each client we serve.

Integrated Solutions and Industry-Specific Expertise
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Revenues
Income before taxes* 

Net income* 

Diluted earnings per share* 

Working capital
Stockholders’ equity
Total assets

Number of employees
Number of shareholders

$6,600,838
190,869
260,369

1.64

767,820
2,001,275
4,046,795

45,000
81,500

$5,616,048
303,313
192,413

1.23

533,915
1,669,560
3,493,087

40,980
65,775

$4,740,760
196,930
109,431

.71

430,484
1,420,113
2,936,019

38,110
62,000

In thousands of dollars except per-share data April 3, 1998 March 29, 1997 March 31, 1996

Fiscal Year Ended

*All operating results above include special items. A discussion of “Income Before
Taxes” and “Net Income and Earnings per Share” before and after special items
is included on page 35 of this annual report.

Computer Sciences Corporation’s fiscal year ends the Friday closest to March 31.

Financial Highlights
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Fiscal 1998 was an exceptional year for CSC. We reported record revenue and earnings,
implemented new contracts worth billions of dollars, strongly increased our commercial
systems integration and information technology outsourcing revenue, and successfully
established a major presence in three important vertical markets.

Annual revenue for CSC rose 17.5 percent, from the $5.6 billion reported for fiscal 1997 to
$6.6 billion. Net earnings, excluding special items, were up 19.7 percent, from $227.7 million
to $272.6 million, reflecting improved margins, and earnings per share increased from $1.46
to $1.72. Including special items, net earnings and earnings per share for fiscal 1998 were
$260.4 million and $1.64. 

During the year, we completed implementation of two of the largest and most important
contracts CSC has ever been awarded. Both are ground breaking agreements that set new
standards for our industry and are global in scope.

The first is with J.P. Morgan, where CSC led a team including Andersen Consulting, AT&T
Solutions and Bell Atlantic Network Integration that won the contract. The team then joined
with J.P. Morgan to form Pinnacle Alliance, which supports a large portion of J. P. Morgan’s
worldwide information technology structure. This work is continuing to expand and evolve.
The agreement is a first in the information technology industry and has provided CSC with
knowledge and experience that no other information services company has.

The second contract is with DuPont, where CSC and DuPont have a shared goal of helping
DuPont gain the greatest business value from its information technology systems. Major
accomplishments during the year include the incorporation of technology solutions such as
SAP, Year 2000, supply chain and software engineering into the company’s businesses. The
aim is to deliver truly global solutions to DuPont, which operates in more than 70 countries,
and we are well on the way to achieving that.

3

To Our Shareholders
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Several other important contracts were implemented during the year. They include CNA
Financial Corporation, where we are providing a wide variety of information technology
solutions, and ING Financial Services North America, a unit of Amsterdam-based ING 
Group, one of the world’s largest diversified financial services companies, where we are 
supporting data center operations, automating help desk functions and managing desktop 
support and local area network services.

These large outsourcing contracts, along with others, significantly increased CSC’s outsourcing
revenue, contributing an additional $700 million during the year. As we look ahead, fiscal
1999 offers a significant number of major outsourcing opportunities, both in the United States
and around the world.

Growth in our systems consulting and integration services constituted a significant part of 
our overall revenue increase, adding nearly $300 million during the year. Particularly strong
were such areas as electronic commerce via the internet; Year 2000 services, which address
the widely publicized information technology millennium issue described later in this 
report; and enterprise-wide solutions, which integrate disparate business functions across an
entire company, making data easier to find, update and analyze.

The three major forces driving dramatic change in the business world – globalization,
deregulation and consolidation -- are creating very strong growth in demand for information
technology outsourcing and systems consulting and integration services. This will continue
as we move into the twenty-first century. Research groups that follow our industry expect
information technology services spending to soar from approximately $335 billion in 1997 to
nearly $860 billion in 2002, a compound annual growth rate of more than 20 percent.

4
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Another important source of growth for CSC is in vertical markets, worldwide. We participate
in a wide range of these, from aerospace and automotive to chemical oil and gas, financial
services, healthcare and utilities. CSC has established significant presence and scale in such
markets by winning large outsourcing contracts and making strategic acquisitions.

CSC has been a leading provider of information services to the U.S. federal government for
more than three decades, beginning with the acquisition in 1965 of two units of ITT. Today,
we derive more than $1.6 billion in annual revenue from this key market. Through our work
there, we have gained extremely sophisticated technology and an enormous amount of
experience in managing large, mission-critical and very complex contracts, both of which are
unmatched by others in our industry. 

We established CSC in the financial services market in August 1996 with the acquisition of
The Continuum Company, a leading provider of information services and software to the
financial, banking and insurance services industry. Subsequently we formed our Financial Services
Group, which was a major contributor to the approximately $1 billion in financial services
revenue CSC realized during fiscal 1998. The group was instrumental in winning the CNA
and ING contracts.

CSC has been engaged in several areas of the healthcare industry for more than 15 years, but
with the acquisition in 1997 of APM, the leading management consulting company in the
healthcare field, we established significant presence. We formed our Healthcare Group and
now offer a wide range of services to leading managed care organizations, major hospitals,
and medical centers. Companywide, CSC reported nearly $300 million in healthcare-related
revenue for fiscal 1998.

CSC has never been better positioned for growth and profitability.

5
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The joint effort we have underway with DuPont immediately gave us strong presence in the
chemical, oil and gas vertical market. We formed our Chemical, Oil and Gas Group and began
work at DuPont in June 1997. CSC’s revenue from this industry was significant in fiscal 1998,
and we will strongly expand our global marketing effort there as we go through fiscal 1999.

CSC has never been better positioned for growth and profitability. We offer our clients the
full range of information solutions, from management consulting through systems 
integration, professional services and outsourcing, and each provided a substantial portion
of the $6.6 billion in revenue we reported for fiscal 1998. The revenue contributions from 
all three of our major marketplaces -- international, U.S. commercial and U.S. federal – are 
strong. And as our results for fiscal 1998 show, our growth in vertical markets is rapid and vibrant.

Many of you know that midway through our fiscal fourth quarter, an extraordinary event
occurred. On February 11, we received an unsolicited and unwanted bid from Computer
Associates to acquire CSC. On February 17, they launched a hostile tender offer for $108 a
share ($54 a share adjusted for our 2 for 1 stock split March 23). The proposed combination
made no business sense and the offer was not fair value. We rejected the offer and began a
vigorous defense against this unwanted advance. On March 5, Computer Associates
announced that they would not continue their efforts and would let the offer expire, as it 
did, March 16.

6
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Van B. Honeycutt
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
June 23, 1998
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Throughout this intense time, three fundamental beliefs we hold at CSC were reaffirmed.

We have an extremely talented, dedicated and loyal group of employees, who ignored the
daily distraction inherent in the situation and continued to provide our customers with the
superior level of service they have historically delivered. They are true professionals.

Our clients highly value the relationship we share and what we bring to their businesses. 
A number of them were quoted by financial and industry group analysts and by the press
supporting our position, and we received much encouragement from them. We are 
most grateful.

You, our shareholders, believe that CSC’s prospects are bright and that we have the 
ability and determination to achieve them. Speaking for all of us at CSC, thank you for 
your support.

Sincerely Yours,
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Total Revenues 
by Market

Total Revenues 
by Business Service

A U.S Commercial 42%
$2.8

B Europe 27%
$1.8

C Other International 6%
$.4

D U.S DOD 16%
$1.1

E U.S Civil Agencies 9%
$.5

Total
$6.6

A Management Consulting / 
Professional Services 38%
$2.5

B Outsourcing 42%
$2.8

C Systems Integration 20%
$1.3

Total
$6.6

A

C

B

A

C

B
D

E

Total Global Revenues by Market and Business Service for Fiscal 1998
(In Billions of Dollars)
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Revenue Mix International 
and U.S. Revenue

A Commercial 75%
$5.0 

B U.S. Federal Government 25%
$1.6

Total
$6.6

A U.S. 67%
$4.4

B Europe 27%
$1.8

C Other International 6%
$.4

Total
$6.6

A A

B
CB



1 01 0 S O L U T I O N S

New Ideas, New Approaches and New Tools



The rapid evolution of technology can sometimes feel like a runaway train that is running
head-on into the world of business. CSC helps its clients take control of change. The depth
and breadth of CSC’s skills, capabilities, consultancies and technologies have built a world of
solutions that is changing the way our clients do business; solutions that anticipate the
turbulence of our times and continually evolve to pave the way to results.

The following section of this report gives just a few examples of the flexible, scalable
solutions we’re investing in – solutions that will help our clients grow. We believe that as
technology continues its rapid evolution, the implementation of solutions like these will help
our clients achieve and maintain leadership positions in the business world of tomorrow.

1 1S O L U T I O N S
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Known for our ability to put it all together, CSC helps clients turn 
challenges into opportunities through the strategic use of technology.

Translating techno-speak into business terms to align corporate strategies

1 2

As technology becomes more powerful, it also becomes more complex. Organizations hire technical experts to manage
this complexity and harness the power of technology for the purpose of growth. However, technology alone cannot
solve business problems. In order to drive optimal performance, technology planning must be an integral part of
strategic planning. Executives who are focusing on the marketplace must be able to understand the potential of
technology in order to best apply it to achieve their organizational goals. All too often there is a disconnect between
business and information technology (I/T) strategies which can foil the best-laid plans.

That’s why CSC developed a methodology called CSC FusionSM. It is both a process and an actionable plan that
provides a set of tools that can identify, prioritize, align and merge business and information technology strategies
to drive results. Fusion then lays the groundwork for implementing them.

S O L U T I O N S
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Fusion is a collaborative effort in which CSC brings together the high-level executives of an organization with its
information technology managers and helps them understand each other’s goals, strategies and even the language
that each speaks. Best of all for our clients, Fusion can be implemented within eight to twelve weeks. At the end
of that time period, our clients have a process in place for aligning business and I/T goals and a master action plan
that clearly points the way to success.

This solution is another tool in CSC’s arsenal to serve clients better and more comprehensively. By helping our clients
identify their strategic priorities and develop appropriate I/T strategies to support them, we can ensure they are getting
what they really need out of every I/T engagement. By implementing these solutions for them, we can ensure they
are done right. Our goal is to create more satisfied customers who count on CSC as their partner over time.

S O L U T I O N S
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Capturing customer loyalty by giving them what they want, when they want it

As the race to capture customer loyalty becomes more fevered, organizations are turning
to the supply chain to provide greater value, quicker time-to-market, and reduced costs.

A supply chain is made up of the links between an organization, its suppliers, manufacturers,
distributors and customers. It encompasses all the business and logistics functions that
move goods and information between these links and optimizes the movement of products,
information and cash through procurement, manufacturing, logisitics and sales processes.

Technology is revolutionizing the supply chain and transforming the way organizations
interact with their suppliers and customers. Effective supply chain solutions enable
organizations to reengineer their operations to become more responsive to customers
and more cost effective.

CSC has hundreds of practitioners and a dedicated global operation focused on implementing
total solutions that maximize a client’s ability to attract and retain customer loyalty, grow
revenue and achieve operational excellence. From management consulting to “best of
breed” tools, CSC brings an impressive scope of solutions that include: better-designed
business processes; stronger connectivity with internal and external customers; and more
strategic deployment of technology. We do stand-alone implementation, as well as integration
with major ERP applications and legacy systems. And in this Internet-driven era CSC is
uniquely capable of helping organizations create their “e-chain” operations model.

Specific examples of CSC’s innovation in the supply chain arena include our partnerships
with key hardware and software providers to develop “supply nets,” internet-based supply
networks, and pre-configured best practice solution sets. We are also working with
companies to implement “one-to-one operations,” a process for meeting the unique needs
of each customer and doing so in an efficient way. By taking the ideas of mass production
and combining them with the concept of one-to-one customization, we are revolutionizing
service delivery by enabling organizations to deliver “mass customization” via the 
supply chain.

1 4 S O L U T I O N S

The worldwide market for the software which enables supply 
chain management is expected to grow at an annual rate 
of 17.9 percent, reaching $4.2 billion by 2001.
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Integrating business processes so the left hand knows what the right hand is doing

Enterprise resource planning (ERP) products are enterprise-wide applications that can
integrate disparate business functions such as finance, manufacturing and human resources
into one cohesive system. They serve as corporate-wide transaction backbones that make
data easier to find, update and analyze. Properly conceived and implemented, ERP systems
can greatly increase performance, productivity and the flexibility to quickly react to
market changes in even the largest global enterprises.

Driving the demand for ERP are more complex requirements, a strong preference to buy
packaged solutions rather than develop them in-house, and the need for systems that
are Year 2000 compliant. 

CSC is well positioned to capitalize on this market growth. Four software makers – Baan,
Oracle, PeopleSoft and SAP – make up 70 percent of the ERP marketplace, and CSC
has established global alliance partnerships to support each of them. We have amassed
thousands of experts in ERP practices and created a global network of demonstration
labs and centers of excellence to refine our skills in each package. Our future plans are
to expand our capabilities across industries and geographies, invest in methods and
tools, and increase ERP delivery resources. We have committed to increasing our
training capacity and are aggressively hiring and deploying experienced personnel. 

Outsourcing engagements, such as our $4 billion, 10-year alliance with DuPont, brought
CSC hundreds of SAP experts. Last year saw two key acquisitions – the Pinnacle Group,
a top U.S. specialist in PeopleSoft, and Kobra Beheer NV, a Dutch consultancy specializing
in Baan software.

In order to maximize the quality and speed of ERP package implementations, CSC is
customizing its proprietary methodology – CSC CatalystSM. Catalyst contains a packaged
software “roadmap” called Catalyst XPI (Accelerated Package Implementation) that guides
clients and consultants through software acquisition, configuration and implementation. CSC
has developed “extensions,” or bridges, to ERP vendor-specific implementation
methodologies. These implementation frameworks provide tools for “fitting the process to
the package” where possible to help our clients avoid the time and cost of customization.

1 5S O L U T I O N S

The ERP market is growing at an estimated rate 
of 30 percent a year.
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Cashing in on the Internet – using digital technology for profit

By the year 2000, business-to-business Internet commerce – 
or E-commerce – is predicted to be worth $66 billion.

1 6

Industry analysts have labeled the Internet a “disruptive” technology – a revolutionary innovation that can and will
transform the marketplace. According to a report by the U.S. Department of Commerce titled The Emerging Digital
Economy, 100 million people worldwide logged onto the Internet last year, up from 40 million in 1996. Internet traffic
is doubling every 100 days. Although projections on what the Internet services market will be worth vary, analysts
agree the growth rate of this technology is unprecedented and explosive.

The Internet is radically changing the way companies do business by improving customer service, customer
satisfaction and loyalty in the business-to-business market. A recent survey of corporate users reported that return
on investment for web technology was about 245 percent, and that web investments paid for themselves in about
six weeks.

S O L U T I O N S
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In the face of these astonishing numbers, CSC is moving rapidly to become a major player in shaping electronic
commerce solutions for transacting business on the Internet. Clients that implement digital technologies require
reengineered business processes, integration with their back-office legacy systems, and high volume, scalable 
transaction systems. Taking businesses digital is a natural extension of CSC’s strengths in management consulting,
systems integration, technology innovation, and legacy management.

CSC’s global initiative for developing and delivering electronic commerce solutions is called CSC e~WaveSM. Its
mission is to create powerful solutions for our clients to reach their customers leveraging Internet technology. Part
of its mission is to pervade all of CSC with electronic commerce skills.

S O L U T I O N S
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Solutions that make sense: supporting the business of finance with technology

The global financial services industry is experiencing a time of unprecedented change.
Consumer preferences for financial products and delivery methods are shifting, barriers
between industry sectors and geographies are coming down, and the industry is con-
solidating at a rapid pace. Companies must be able to adapt organizational structures
and deploy new technologies rapidly to capitalize on these changes.

CSC provides a full complement of offerings that target the complex requirements created
by this industry environment. These offerings draw on the company’s full range of consulting,
systems integration and outsourcing capabilities, as well as in-depth knowledge of the
financial services industry. CSC helps financial services providers achieve specific business
objectives such as: improved customer service and knowledge, expanded product offerings,
cost containment/scale economies, innovation and speed to market, and growth through
new start-ups, mergers, acquisitions and partnerships.

CSC’s financial services offerings are fully integrated, reusable packages of proven solution
components. These components include: teams of people with the required business and
technical knowledge, experience and skills; proven service delivery processes; intellectual
property; technologies; and structured methodologies to analyze business requirements
and configure a solution to meet specific needs. For example, our call center offering
components comprise: intellectual property; third-party links; installation, systems integration,
training and staffing; feasibility studies, cost/benefit analysis, measurement and tracking
tools; business process management and design; cultural change and organizational
change consulting.

The intellectual capital embodied in our specialized application software products is a
key component of CSC’s financial services offerings. We provide one of the world’s most
comprehensive portfolios of application software for the financial services industry,
representing three decades of industry knowledge and experience. Our market-leading
solutions enable leading insurers, banks and other financial organizations worldwide to
collect and utilize critical enterprise information, achieve flexibility in the way they do
business, streamline processes, leverage a variety of distribution channels, and develop
and nurture client relationships.

CSC’s investment in research and development for financial services applications exceeded
$100 million in fiscal 1998. Our continued commitment to investment in our global products
means we can provide rapid, cost-effective and proven solutions to our customers rather
than building a solution from scratch each time. And we can continue to adapt our products
as new technologies emerge and business requirements change. CSC’s three-tiered
product development and management strategy includes a sophisticated “layering” process
that enables customization on a global, regional and individual basis.

1 8 S O L U T I O N S

The worldwide financial services industry spends almost $175 billion 
a year on information technology services and software, and that 
amount is expected to exceed $220 billion by the year 2000.
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Our specialized applications handle a full range of financial services functions 
such as insurance administration, bank transaction processing, customer relationship
management, profitability analysis, distribution/delivery systems, claims evaluation and
automated work management.

Providing solutions that integrate information across healthcare organizations

The competitive pressures of managed care are driving the healthcare industry to reduce
costs and achieve greater efficiencies while still providing quality service to its patients.
As the industry goes through consolidation, information systems will become the key to
integrating the administrative functions of merged organizations. According to a recent
survey conducted jointly by the Health Information and Management Systems Society
and Hewlett-Packard, healthcare organizations have three I/T priorities. These are upgrad-
ing infrastructure, integrating multi-vendor systems, and reengineering front-office systems
to provide better patient care. 

CSC helps its healthcare clients respond to these challenges with a wide range of 
end-to-end business applications. These customizable, scalable I/T solutions can support
any type of organization – from a small two-hospital health system to a large national
health plan with millions of members. They include: flexible managed care administration
with provider contracting, medical management and provider reimbursement; benefits
administration for third-party administered and self-insured clients; and a practice
management system which enables clients to maximize profitability.

Our management consulting solutions include I/T-enabled redesign, clinical effectiveness,
supply chain management, portfolio management and therapeutic entry strategies.

We also have solutions that help our clients establish extended enterprise platforms,
support faster knowledge interchange, and improve workflow among clinical and
business partners. Executive decision support tools enable managers to maximize the
value of the information they collect and retain. These decision technologies consist of
six data analysis applications:

Focal PointTM, a decision support system and data warehouse; The Johns Hopkins ACG
Case Mix AdjustmentSM system, a rules-based product that categorizes patients
treatment levels; The PACE system, a performance assessment tool for clinical
excellence; The BASys system, a clinical benchmarking analysis system; The Micro
CHF system, a database used to capture and provide feedback for continuous quality
improvements; and Benchwrks, a healthcare benchmarking analysis system.

1 9S O L U T I O N S

According to research forecasts, the healthcare industry 
will spend more than $20 billion annually on information 
technology by 2001.
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Panning for gold – how to turn corporate information into profits

Projections show that I/T professional services in data warehousing will grow at a
compound annual rate of about 25 percent between 1996 and 2001. The market, estimated
to be about $1.8 billion in 1996, will grow to more than $5 billion by 2001.

2 0

All too often the problems companies face when trying to get to know their customers better is not too little data, but
too much. Data warehousing is a way to collect and store data from information systems throughout the organization,
put it into a consistent format, and provide query tools that let users analyze it in various ways to make fact-based
business decisions. By better understanding and better utilizing the information available to them, organizations can
avoid costs before they occur and capitalize on business opportunities they might have previously missed.

The potential for this technology is tremendous, but before CSC recommends a specific solution, we focus first on
business benefits. We help clients build a business case to determine which business problems they specifically 
want to solve. In order to demonstrate what data warehousing can do for a client, CSC has created a Data 
Warehouse Applications Lab that illustrates frameworks based on successful warehouses CSC has developed for
industries ranging from insurance to pharmaceuticals. Once a clear economic model has been developed that 
shows both the costs of constructing a warehouse and the projected economic returns, it’s time to start building.

S O L U T I O N S
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CSC’s development capability is led by the Data Warehouse Design Guide Initiative that has defined CSC’s technical
approach in three key areas: architecture, infrastructure and methodology. The initiative’s prototype warehouse can
simulate the operations of very large computer environments. This enables proof-of-concepts and end-to-end
simulations which give clients a realistic idea of what the system can do. Our ability to test before we implement
allows us to tackle the toughest challenges.

One proprietary solution is a data warehouse framework called PharmIQSM which combines our knowledge of the
business drivers and requirements of the healthcare and life sciences industry with our systems expertise. It
encompasses best practices, scalable data models, and a refined set of business analytics. This information
infrastructure maximizes the power of sales, marketing and contract data.

S O L U T I O N S
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Keeping companies around the world and the U.S. government in business

As the year 2000 grows closer, the millennium challenge looms larger. Dates formatted
in computer code with only two digits for the year cannot recognize the difference
between the centuries 1900 and 2000, potentially causing computer systems to make
errors, or fail.

Until now, many organizations have put off the assessment of their systems as a result of
budget squeezes, competing requirements, and management indecision. But private
businesses and government organizations can wait no longer. Twenty to thirty percent of
a typical business application portfolio will have Year 2000 failures if not properly addressed.
U.S. federal agencies have identified 7,850 mission critical systems. Only 35 percent of
them are Y2K compliant. In April 1998, the U.S. government’s General Accounting Office
reported that only 18.3 percent of Department of Defense mission critical systems have
been corrected.

CSC’s proprietary methodology – Catalyst 2000SM – addresses all aspects of the Y2K
challenge. However, the timing, the extent of the Y2K situation, the nature of the code,
and the circumstances of the client and the enterprise will drive the solution used. We
are one of the few service providers who can offer a total solution from proven program
management skills, to programmers, facilities, tools and resources, including three
renovation centers, a data center, and a test facility. These resources allow us to check,
fix and test code as quickly as possible while maintaining a thorough process that ensures
accuracy. While many of our competitors offer specialized tools or applications that fix
only a piece of the problem, CSC addresses the total business environment and works
to help clients understand how systems impact each other as they carry out vital business
functions. We create solutions for highly integrated systems, the kind most organizations
rely on to run their enterprise. 

We currently have dedicated practices to serve commercial and government markets
and to focus on our internal Y2K compliance effort. Our internal Year 2000 milestone
schedule calls for each component supporting one or more critical business processes
to be Year 2000-ready in January 1999, and all critical systems to be fully integrated and
functioning in Year 2000-ready mode by mid-year. 

By being available as our customers’ full-service provider and technology partner, we
can leverage our business opportunities for the future. Our goal is to help our clients
through this critical business problem and position CSC to be their long-term provider of
consulting and technology services, whatever they may be.

2 2 S O L U T I O N S

It has been predicted that government agencies and 
corporations may spend as much as $600 billion on 
Year 2000 (Y2K) compliance issues worldwide.
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Jump-starting business with the rapid development of customized systems

Businesses today are looking to enhance their competitiveness through distributed
information technology. They seek to give employees and customers faster and broader
access to information, carry out business transactions across borders, and exploit the growing
power of the Web. An exciting development that promises faster deployment of these
systems is called component technology. A component is essentially a package of business
or technical services that can be distributed across a network. A simple example would
be a spell checker in a word processor. These “building blocks” of pre-built,
pre-tested and proven components help us build a variety of business systems including
electronic commerce solutions much more quickly, and with much less risk, than ever before.

But building complex systems – even with the use of components – can be difficult without
a framework such as CSC Lynx SM. Lynx provides not only a set of components, but also
a blueprint or architecture, a process for how to build it, and the necessary tools and
techniques for getting the job done. Trying to build a system without a framework such
as Lynx can be likened to trying to remodel a kitchen without plans, tools or materials.

With CSC Lynx, CSC is setting the standards of excellence for component-based
development. It is a competitive advantage for CSC because it helps us develop and
deliver distributed systems that provide business results to our clients. Few of our
competitors have such a framework. The Lynx methodology examines a client’s business
goals and includes a system for making appropriate decisions about which functions and
features are required to achieve those goals given current business practices and processes.
Lynx’s focus on business results enables us to achieve successful implementations at our
client projects. CSC Lynx, derived from our proven methodology CSC Catalyst, reflects
decades of experience in delivering high-performance systems to our clients. Most
importantly, CSC is providing this framework to its clients along with the training and tools
required to apply it. By doing so we are positioning CSC as their long-term systems
integration partner.

Lynx systems have been developed and deployed – start to finish – in as little as four
months. Without Lynx, these projects might have taken two to three times as long to
complete. Over the past four years the Lynx program has experienced a compound
annual growth rate of 125 percent. Future releases of Lynx will include components
targeted at electronic commerce solutions and at selected markets such as banking and
insurance. This portfolio of customized applications will provide CSC with a substantial
advantage in the marketplace.

2 3S O L U T I O N S

Revenue growth for component software and services is 
expected to skyrocket from $1.5 billion in 1997 to $8.16 billion 
in the year 2002. Components are the “building blocks” for CSC 
Lynx, our framework for building systems.
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CSC has continued to grow its business internationally through acquisitions, outsourcing
engagements and internal growth initiatives. We have acquired specific industry expertise in
a variety of markets and formed three new vertical market groups in 1997. These groups
brought the expertise, talent, tools and solutions from across the company into integrated
business units specifically targeted at three major markets: financial services, healthcare,
and chemicals, oil and gas. 

Our largest market is also the one in which we have the longest history, and it is the source
of some of our most sophisticated technology solutions. CSC has been providing information
services to the U.S. federal government for more than 30 years.

M A R K E T S



Transferring technology from the federal government to commercial enterprises
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With the acquisition of Information Technology Solutions, Inc. in March 1998, 
CSC’s Federal Sector numbers more than 17,000 employees with 8,300 located 
in the Washington, D.C. area.

M A R K E T S2 6

Almost since its inception, CSC has served the U.S. federal market and it remains a significant part of our business.
Technical solutions important to this market include information security, supply chain management, Y2K compliance,
outsourcing and ERP implementations. CSC has proven best practices and methodologies for delivering these
technologies in both the commercial and federal markets and can cross-pollinate ideas to deliver the best total solution
to its customers in either sector. One highly successful example of our transfer of technology from the U.S. federal
government to the commercial marketplace is our package of leading-edge information security (INFOSECSM) solutions. 

The U.S. market for network security services including consulting, implementation and monitoring is expected to
grow from $203 million in 1997 to $652 million by 2001. The need for information security is growing as quickly as
the need for inter-connectivity. By the year 2002, an estimated 90 percent of all enterprises will have experienced
significant financial loss as a result of an information security breach. Security threats can come from a spectrum
of sources: disgruntled employees, recreational hackers and organized criminals. 
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Clearly, this is an ongoing challenge that has the potential to impact almost everyone. Our INFOSEC capabilities
were developed through security contracts with various agencies and departments of the U.S. federal government.
CSC’S hundreds of INFOSEC employees are tasked with developing and testing new technologies to create world-
class INFOSEC solutions that we are making available to both our government and commercial clients. 

CSC’s Information Operations Center is a center of excellence built around a series of multimillion-dollar laboratories.
One lab is devoted to testing and integrating firewalls. Others can be configured to duplicate the workings of virtually
any network, deal with multi-level security, develop and test large-scale network management and develop and
test tools for managing infrastructure protection and security incident response activities. A key aspect of the lab
activities includes the capability to perform fast vulnerability analysis on large networks using CSC’s award-winning
HYDRATM tool set. Developed largely under government-sponsored research and testing programs, the labs give
CSC a range of capabilities that competitors find difficult to match.

M A R K E T S 2 7



Breaking new ground in the healthcare industry

In February 1997 CSC announced the formation of its Healthcare Group which brought
together CSC’s proprietary healthcare application solutions, Life Sciences practice 
and management consulting expertise. The group offers an integrated set of products 
and services to meet the needs of providers, payors and suppliers, and is uniquely
positioned to provide comprehensive solutions to standard-setting clients in all segments
of the industry.

Last year CSC achieved several important milestones in the industry. We created a task
force to help pharmaceutical, biotechnology and medical device companies deploy
electronic records in order to streamline the compliance process to get products to
market faster. We also succeeded in having two performance measurement systems –
BASys and PACE systems – endorsed by the Joint Commission for the Accreditation of
Healthcare Organizations. 

CSC’s software applications address all facets of the healthcare business from managed
care administration to practice management, and from decision support to benchmarking
hospital performance. We are also actively developing new solutions by forming alliances
with leaders in the industry. Our strategic partnership with Healtheon Corporation was
created to develop and market Internet-based applications that will help health plans,
hospitals, integrated delivery networks and physician groups to manage workflows and
exchange information through Internet-based services. 

Our customers include many of the nation’s top managed care and indemnity organiza-
tions as well as many of the country’s most respected hospital systems, academic
medical centers, community hospitals, group practices and industry associations. We are
committed to leveraging our healthcare focus to provide our customers with a suite of
solutions unmatched in the industry.

2 8 M A R K E T S

CSC’s Healthcare Group is one of the world’s top ten global 
healthcare consulting and technology organizations.
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Global solutions help CSC’s Chemical, Oil & Gas clients get closer to their customers

CSC’s Chemical, Oil & Gas Group is made up of thousands of industry specialists
worldwide. The core of the group includes chemicals specialists in 18 countries who
joined CSC as part of its technology alliance with DuPont. Other strong contributors to
the group are the well-established chemicals practice offered through CSC Ploenzke in
Europe and CSC’s management consulting expertise in this area. 

As chemical manufacturers look for new ways to grow their business, they are turning to
mergers, acquisitions and alliances. Along with industry-specific expertise, CSC brings a
full scope of consulting, systems integration and outsourcing solutions to help them
integrate their organizations, increase efficiencies and grow. DuPont, a major chemical
company transforming into a Life Sciences company, in June 1997, chose CSC as
principal strategic partner for its global outsourcing alliance – a $4 billion, 10-year joint
I/T contract, including 100 percent of the Canadian and European contracts, and the I/T
infrastructure for South America and Asia. Immediate areas of focus for the engagement
have been the design of global SAP/R3 enterprise resource planning (ERP) solutions,
Program Management for the Year 2000 issue and I/T Strategy for the transformation to
a Life Sciences company.

We will offer clients in this market globally integrated solutions based on a common set of
best practices. CSC has been implementing SAP – one of the key ERP systems for this
industry – since 1983. Our global implementation expertise covers every business line of
the chemicals industry.

In anticipation of the growth of the chemicals, oil and gas market, CSC is building 
an SAP training facility and global solutions laboratory in Christiana, Delaware. We
recently opened our first global solutions laboratory in Germany to showcase new
technology, best practices and industry-specific solutions for our clients. We plan to
launch more of these laboratories in North America, Europe and Asia-Pacific over the
next several years. 

Our proven capabilities in SAP ERP implementation, supply chain management,
electronic commerce and information security position CSC as a key provider of leading-
edge solutions.

2 9M A R K E T S

As chemical manufacturers look for new ways to add business 
value, they are using mergers, acquisitions and alliances to 
forge new business models and cut costs. CSC delivers the 
technical solutions they are relying on to integrate operations 
and better reach their customers.
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Delivering solutions to the financial services market worldwide

This year marks the first anniversary of the formation of CSC’s Financial Services Group, created to leverage CSC’s
full range of capabilities for the global financial services industry. We have significantly strengthened our market
position and introduced new technologies to the industry. We added top-tier financial services clients and built a
strong revenue backlog with the expansion of our outsourcing business and other long-term services contracts.

We delivered new releases of several major products including: the Card and Merchant System (CAMS II TM), 
which allows financial institutions’ customers to access credit and debit cards as well as ATM and point of sales
networks from the same account; and SICS NTTM, our reinsurance system that has been selected by four of the top
five global reinsurers. We also released COLOSSUSTM 5.0, our market-leading expert system for evaluating bodily 

Financial services companies are looking for an integrated solution, 
one that calls upon the whole range of CSC’s services: Year 2000 solutions,
business reengineering, outsourcing, electronic commerce, insurance and
banking applications software.

3 0 M A R K E T S
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injury claims; and COGEN® 4.0, our property and casualty (general insurance) administration system. We marked
sucesses with call center offerings and with our object-oriented technology platform, GraphTalk® A.I.A., which now
has a customer base of over 50 companies representing every major financial market in the world.

We helped the first North American and the first European bank go live with SAP software, and we acquired two
insurance software companies in the U.K., making us the largest supplier of property and casualty broker systems
in Europe. CSC supports more than 1,000 financial services clients in 50 countries, including nearly half of Fortune’s
Global 500 financial services companies.

3 1M A R K E T S



Computer Sciences CorporationManagement’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Results of Operations 

Revenues

The Company derived its revenues for fiscal years 1998, 1997 and 1996 from the
following market sectors:

Fiscal 1998 Fiscal 1997 Fiscal 1996

Percent Percent
Dollars in millions Amount Change Amount Change Amount

U. S. Commercial $2,775.5 29% $2,159.7 22% $1,770.8
Europe 1,771.0 21 1,467.1 32 1,109.6
Other International 423.6 20 353.6 22 288.9

Global Commercial 4,970.1 25 3,980.4 26 3,169.3
U. S. Federal Government 1,630.7 0 1,635.6 4 1,571.5

Total $6,600.8 18 $5,616.0 18 $4,740.8

The Company’s 18% revenue growth for fiscal 1998 compared with 1997 was propelled
by strong increases in its global commercial operations. U.S. commercial revenue grew
29% or $615.8 million during fiscal 1998. More than half of the growth was generated
by increases in outsourcing. Fiscal 1998 U.S. outsourcing revenue growth was fueled by
major new contracts including E.I. du Pont de Nemours and Company (“DuPont”) and
CNA Financial Corporation, and by increases in revenues from vertical markets such as
financial services and healthcare. Consulting and systems integration services contributed
about a quarter of the Company’s other U.S. commercial revenue growth during fiscal
1998 due to strong demand for enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) services, electronic
commerce and Year 2000 assessment and renovation activities.

For fiscal 1997, U.S. commercial revenues grew 22%, or $388.9 million. Nearly half of
the growth was provided by increases in outsourcing. Fiscal 1997 outsourcing revenue
growth was derived from additional services provided to the Hughes Electronics
Corporation and new contracts, including the Pinnacle Alliance with J.P. Morgan & Co.
Incorporated (“J.P. Morgan”), Bath Iron Works Corporation, ING Financial Services
International, Hyatt Hotels Corp. and Baker & Taylor, Inc. The remainder of the U.S.
commercial revenue growth was derived principally from increased demand for
consulting and systems integration services, the acquisition of American Practice
Management, Inc. and growth within the financial services sector.

Effective August 1, 1996, the Company acquired The Continuum Company, Inc.
(“Continuum”), in a transaction which was accounted for as a pooling of interests.
Accordingly, CSC’s consolidated financial statements for periods prior to August 1, 1996
have been restated to include the financial position and results of operations of
Continuum, which now operates as CSC’s Financial Services Group. For its fiscal year
ended March 31, 1996, Continuum reported $498.3 million of revenue.

The Company’s European operations generated revenue growth of 21%, or $303.9
million, for fiscal 1998 compared to 1997. The growth was primarily due to outsourcing
services provided to British Aerospace plc, DuPont and J.P. Morgan, and strong demand
throughout Europe for consulting and systems integration activities and ERP services.

Other international operations contributed revenue growth of 20%, or $70 million, during
fiscal 1998. The growth was primarily attributable to increased outsourcing business in
Australia as well as increases in the financial services sector.
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CSC’s European operations generated revenue growth of 32%, or $357.5 million, for fiscal
1997 versus 1996. Three factors generated the bulk of the Company’s international
growth: (1) the acquisition of two major Scandinavian providers of information
technology services, (2) the continued expansion of outsourcing business in the United
Kingdom, including a full year of activity on the Company’s contract to manage the
information technology operations of Anglian Water plc, and (3) increased demand for
consulting services in Germany, especially in the area of ERP applications.

During fiscal 1997, other international revenues increased 22% to $353.6 million. The
growth was principally due to increased outsourcing activity in Australia and the
acquisition of McDonnell Information Systems Ltd., a leading provider of healthcare
information systems to the Australasian healthcare industry.

The Company’s U.S. federal government revenues were derived from the following agencies:

Fiscal 1998 Fiscal 1997 Fiscal 1996

Percent Percent
Dollars in millions Amount Change Amount Change Amount

Department of Defense $1,071.9 (1)% $1,082.8 13% $0,961.6
NASA 298.6 0) 299.4 (3) 310.1
Other civil agencies 260.2 3) 253.4 (15) 299.8

Total U. S. Federal $1,630.7 0) $1,635.6 4 $1,571.5

Federal revenues were essentially unchanged for fiscal 1998 compared to 1997. Gains
were generated on certain task order contracts with the General Services Administration
and the Defense Integration Systems Agency (“DISA”) and by the acquisition of
Information Technology Solutions, Inc. These gains were offset primarily by the
conclusion of two large contracts in late fiscal 1997. During fiscal 1997, the Company’s
federal revenue increased primarily due to additional revenue generated on another
task order contract for DISA and increased ordering of a management information system
by the U.S. Department of Defense. Although CSC’s fiscal 1998 and 1997 federal
business was impacted by restrained federal spending, the Company believes the
pipeline of new federal contract opportunities is robust.

During fiscal 1998, CSC announced federal contract awards with a total value of $1.0
billion, compared with the $2.1 billion and $2.4 billion announced during fiscal 1997
and 1996, respectively.

Costs and Expenses

The Company’s costs and expenses before special charges were as follows:

Dollar Amount Percentage of Revenue

Dollars in millions 1998 1997 1996 1998 1997 1996

Costs of services $5,149.2 $4,413.2 $3,692.3 78.0% 78.6% 77.9%
Selling, general & 

administrative 602.7 485.1 471.3 9.1 8.6 9.9
Depreciation and 

amortization 386.9 333.2 272.1 5.9 5.9 5.7
Interest 

expense, net 42.1 32.3 32.1 .6 .6 .7

Total $6,180.9 $5,263.8 $4,467.8 93.6% 93.7% 94.2%
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Costs of Services
The Company’s costs of services as a percent of revenue decreased to 78% for fiscal 1998
from 78.6% for fiscal 1997. The decrease relates to growth in commercial business
versus federal business. The commercial growth occurred in the healthcare and financial
services vertical markets as well as outsourcing, consulting and European operations.
Improvements in European operations also contributed to the reduction in costs of
services. The increase in costs of services in fiscal 1997 was primarily related to excess
costs in the Company’s U.S. telecommunications operations combined with lower
telecommunications software sales and increases in costs in European operations.

Selling, General and Administrative
Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses as a percent of revenue during
fiscal 1998 increased to 9.1% from 8.6% for fiscal 1997. The increase was largely related
to the Company’s overall growth in its commercial operations as compared to its federal
business. In particular, growth in the Healthcare and Financial Services Groups
contributed to the increase in SG&A costs. The increase was partially offset by
improvements within the Company’s U.S. outsourcing, consulting and systems integration
operations.

For fiscal 1997, SG&A as a percent of revenue improved to 8.6% from 9.9% for fiscal 1996.
The improvements were largely attributable to the Company’s European operations and
U.S. federal operations.

Special Items
Special items for fiscal 1998 represent costs, expenses and benefits associated with
developments at CSC Enterprises and the Company’s response to a failed take-over
attempt.

The Company recorded a net special credit of $1.7 million, or 1 cent per share, at CSC
Enterprises, a general partnership which operates certain of the Company’s credit
services operations and carries out other business strategies through acquisition and
investment. The net credit resulted from a tax benefit of $135 million and an after-tax
charge of $133.3 million ($208.4 million before tax). During the first quarter, several
partners withdrew from CSC Enterprises. These withdrawals caused CSC Enterprises to
take actions which caused CSC to recognize an increase in the tax basis of certain
assets which resulted in a deferred tax asset of $135 million and a corresponding
reduction in the Company’s provision for taxes. In connection with these developments,
CSC Enterprises reviewed its operations, its market opportunities and the carrying
value of its assets. Based on this review, plans were initiated to eliminate certain offerings
and write down assets, primarily within its telecommunications operations. As a result
of these plans, an after-tax special charge of $133.3 million was recognized. The charge
is comprised of $35 million of goodwill, $33.8 million of contract termination costs, $22.3
million of telecommunications software and accruals, $20.5 million of deferred contract
costs and other assets, $11.7 million of telecommunications property, equipment and
intangible assets, and $10 million of other costs. 

Also, during fiscal 1998 the Company recorded a before-tax special charge of $20.7
million, or 9 cents per share after tax, for costs relating to the Company’s response to
a failed take-over attempt. The charge is comprised of $14 million for investment
banking expenses and $6.7 million for other expenses such as legal costs, public
relations and shareholder communications.

The fiscal 1997 special charge represents costs and expenses related to the August 1 acqui-
sition of Continuum. The amount of the charge, net of income tax benefits on the tax
deductible portion, is $35.3 million or 23 cents per share. The charge is comprised of
$11.0 million for investment banking and other merger expenses; $11.8 million related
to the write-off of certain capitalized software, other assets and intangibles; and $26.1
million related to the elimination of duplicate data-processing facilities, employee
severance costs and contract termination costs.
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The fiscal 1996 special charges were largely related to Continuum’s acquisitions of
Hogan Systems, Inc. and SOCS Holding, a Paris-based software and services company.
The special charges of $76.1 million, or 40 cents per share after tax, included a $26.0
million non-cash charge resulting from the write-off of certain software development
activities at SOCS Holding, restructuring and transaction costs of $19.4 million, and
adjustments to the carrying value of certain operating assets of $30.7 million. 

Income Before Taxes
The Company’s income before taxes for the most recent three fiscal years is as follows:

Dollar Amount Margin

Dollars in millions 1998 1997 1996 1998 1997 1996

Before special 
charges $420.0 $352.2 $273.0 6.4% 6.3% 5.8%

Income before taxes 190.9 303.3 196.9 2.9 5.4 4.2

Income before special charges and taxes improved during fiscal 1998 as a percentage
of revenue. The .1% improvement during fiscal 1998 to a margin of 6.4% relates
principally to the improvement in costs of services and depreciation and amortization.
Partially offsetting the improvement were increases in SG&A expenses as a percent 
of revenue.

During fiscal 1997, income before special charges and taxes increased principally due
to improvement in SG&A expenses partially offset by increases in costs of services and
depreciation and amortization.

Taxes
The (benefit from) provision for income taxes as a percentage of pre-tax earnings was
(36.4)%, 36.6% and 44.4% for fiscal 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively. The fiscal 1998
rate includes the tax benefit associated with the partnership withdrawals at CSC
Enterprises. Before special items, the tax rate was 35.1%, 35.4% and 37.3% for fiscal 1998,
1997 and 1996, respectively.

Net Income and Earnings per Share
The Company’s net income and earnings per share for fiscal years 1998, 1997 and 1996
is as follows:

Dollar Amount Margin

Dollars in millions, except EPS 1998 1997 1996 1998 1997 1996

Net income:
Before special 

items $272.6 $227.7 $171.2 4.1% 4.1% 3.6%
As reported 260.4 192.4 109.4 3.9 3.4 2.3

Diluted earnings 
per share:

Before special 
items 1.72 1.46 1.12 

As reported 1.64 1.23 0.71 

During fiscal 1998, the Company’s net income margin improved to 3.9% from 3.4%. The
net special items incurred during fiscal 1998 reduced net income by $12.2 million or
.2% of revenue. In fiscal 1997, the Company’s net income margin improved to 3.4% from
2.3%. The special charge recorded in 1997 reduced net income by $35.3 million or .6%
of revenue.
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Before special items, the net earnings margin was 4.1% for fiscal 1998 and 1997 and 3.6%
for fiscal 1996. Although the net earnings margin before special items for 1998 was the
same as 1997, the Company registered an improvement in cost of services as a percent
of revenue and a lower tax rate before special items. The improvement in 1997 was
attributable to the reduction of SG&A as a percent of revenue and a lower tax rate partially
offset by an increase in costs of services as a percent of revenue.

Cash Flows

Fiscal 1998 Fiscal 1997 Fiscal 1996

Percent Percent
Dollars in millions Amount Change Amount Change Amount

Cash from operations $(583.3 17% $(500.4 30% $(384.0
Net cash used in investing (582.0) (14) (678.6) 28 (530.8)
Net cash provided

by financing 162.7 (7) 175.0 230 53.1

Net increase (decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents 164.0 (3.2) (93.7)

Cash at beginning of year 110.7 113.9 207.6

Cash at end of year $(274.7 148 $(110.7 (3) $(113.9

Historically, the majority of the Company’s cash has been provided from operating
activities. The increases in cash from operations during fiscal 1998 and 1997 are
primarily due to higher earnings, non-cash charges (depreciation and amortization) and
lower income tax payments, partially offset by increased working capital requirements.

The Company’s investments principally relate to purchases of computer equipment and
software that support the Company’s expanding commercial operations. Investments
include computer equipment purchased at the inception of outsourcing contracts as well
as subsequent upgrades, expansion or replacement of these client-supporting assets. The
Company’s investments also include a significant number of business acquisitions
during fiscal 1996 through 1998.

As described above, a majority of the Company’s capital investments have been funded
by cash from operations. During fiscal 1997 the Company, through affiliates, issued $150
million of term debt.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
The balance of cash and cash equivalents was $274.7 million at April 3, 1998, $110.7
million at March 28, 1997 and $113.9 million at March 29, 1996. During this period, the
Company’s earnings have added substantially to equity. At the end of fiscal 1998, CSC’s
ratio of debt to total capitalization was 27.7%.

Dollars in millions 1998 1997 1996

Debt $0,765.0 $0,660.8 $0,505.0
Equity 2,001.3 1,669.6 1,420.1

Total capitalization $2,766.3 $2,330.4 $1,925.1

Debt to total capitalization 27.7% 28.4% 26.2%

During fiscal 1997, the Company increased its affiliates’ credit agreement from $350
million to $490 million to provide stand-by support for commercial paper. At April 3,
1998, $115 million was available for borrowing under this program, down from $193.1
million at March 28, 1997.
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In the opinion of management, CSC will be able to meet its liquidity and cash needs for
the foreseeable future through the combination of cash flows from operating activities,
unused borrowing capacity and other financing activities. If these resources need to be
augmented, major additional cash requirements would likely be financed by the issuance
of debt and/or equity securities. 

Dividends and Redemption
It has been the Company’s policy to invest earnings in the growth of the Company rather
than distribute earnings as dividends. This policy, under which dividends have not
been paid since fiscal 1969, is expected to continue, but is subject to regular review by
the Board of Directors.

On February 27, 1998, the Board of Directors redeemed the stock purchase rights issued
under the 1988 stockholder rights plan and established March 30, 1998 as the record
date for payment of the redemption price of one sixth of one cent per right, which was
paid on April 13, 1998.

Year 2000
Throughout its history, CSC has dealt with ongoing significant changes in the information
technology industry. As a result, resources are constantly being employed to modify,
upgrade and enhance systems and infrastructure on behalf of clients and internal
needs. The Year 2000 issue represents another one of these changes. It is the result of
computer programs which represent years as a two-digit field rather than a four-digit field.
Any of such programs that utilize date sensitive data may not properly recognize a date
field of 00 as the year 2000, but as some other date, typically the year 1900. This could
result in possible system failure or miscalculations which affect normal business activity.

The Company has established a comprehensive two-phase program to ensure that its
proprietary software and internal computer systems are Year 2000 ready. The initial phase,
which included planning, inventory and assessment, has been completed. The final phase,
which consists of correction, testing, deployment and acceptance, is in process and is
expected to be completed by mid-1999. The Company expects that the cost of making
its proprietary software and internal systems compliant will not have a material effect
on its overall financial position or overall trends in results of operations.

The Company has initiated formal communications with all of its crucial suppliers to
determine that they are or will be Year 2000 capable.

The Company has been working with its clients and has completed an assessment of its
obligations to make their systems Year 2000 ready. As a result of this assessment, the
Company does not believe that these obligations will have a material effect on the
Company.

The Company has experienced significant growth in Year 2000 engagements and
expects that trend to continue for the next few years.

New Accounting Pronouncements
The Financial Accounting Standards Board recently issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income,” SFAS No.
131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” and SFAS
No. 132, “Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and other Postretirement Benefits.”
The Company will adopt these standards for fiscal 1999 which will expand or modify
disclosures and will have no impact on consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows. 

During October 1997, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants issued
Statement of Position (“SOP”) 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition,” which supersedes
SOP 91-1, “Software Revenue Recognition.” SOP 97-2 provides further guidance on
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recognizing revenue from sales of proprietary software and is effective for transactions
CSC enters into beginning in fiscal 1999. The Company does not expect the adoption
of SOP 97-2 to have a material impact on consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

Market Risk
The Company has fixed-rate long-term debt obligations, short-term commercial paper,
and other borrowings which are subject to market risk from changes in interest rates.
During the ordinary course of business, the Company also enters into certain transactions
contracted in foreign currency which are subject to market risk from changes in foreign
currency exchange rates. The Company may use foreign currency forward contracts or
options to hedge exposures arising from these transactions.

Sensitivity analysis is one technique used to measure the impact of changes in interest
rates and foreign exchange rates on the value of market-risk sensitive financial
instruments. A hypothetical ten-percent movement in interest rates or a ten-percent
fluctuation in the U.S. dollar against all currencies would not have a material impact
on the Company’s future earnings, fair value, or cash flows.

Forward-Looking Statements
All statements contained in this annual report, or in any other document filed by the
Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or in any press release or other
written or oral communication by or on behalf of the Company, that do not directly
and exclusively relate to historical facts constitute “forward-looking statements” within
the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements,
which represent the Company’s expectations and beliefs, are subject to risks,
uncertainties and other factors, many of which are outside of the Company’s control,
that could cause actual results to differ materially from such statements. These factors
include, without limitation, the following: (i) competitive pressures; (ii) the Company’s
ability to attract and retain key personnel; (iii) changes in the demand for information
technology outsourcing and business process outsourcing; (iv) changes in the financial
condition of the Company’s major commercial customers; (v) changes in U.S. federal
government spending levels for information technology services; (vi) the Company’s
ability to consummate strategic acquisitions and alliances; (vii) the future profitability
of the Company’s customer contracts; (viii) the Company’s ability to continue to
develop and expand its service offerings to address emerging business demand and
technological trends; and (ix) general economic conditions in countries in which the
Company does business.
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Consolidated Statements of Income Computer Sciences Corporation

Fiscal Year Ended

In thousands except per - share amounts April 3, 1998 March 28, 1997 March 29, 1996

Revenues $6,600,838 $5,616,048 $4,740,760

Costs of services 5,149,218 4,413,173 3,692,267
Selling, general and administrative 602,708 485,113 471,309
Depreciation and amortization 386,854 333,247 272,058
Interest expense 50,951 40,268 37,925
Interest income (8,855) (7,995) (5,782)
Special charges (note 2) 229,093 48,929 76,053

Total costs and expenses 6,409,969 5,312,735 4,543,830

Income before taxes 190,869 303,313 196,930
Taxes on income (notes 2 and 3) (69,500) 110,900 87,499

Net income $0,260,369 $0,192,413 $0,109,431

Earnings per common share (note 1):

Basic $0,0001.68 $0,0001.27 $0,0000.74

Diluted $0,0001.64 $0,0001.23 $0,0000.71

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

In thousands April 3, 1998 March 28, 1997

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $0,274,688 $0,110,726
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts 

of $75,373 (1998) and $52,507 (1997) 
(notes 4 and 10) 1,456,330 1,294,003

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 251,618 161,317

Total current assets 1,982,636 1,566,046

Investments and other assets:
Purchased and internally developed software, 

net of accumulated amortization of 
$120,675 (1998) and $152,725 (1997) 125,430 132,627

Excess of cost of businesses acquired over related 
net assets, net of accumulated amortization of 
$90,007 (1998) and $72,472 (1997) 538,408 561,670

Other assets 443,128 344,675

Total investments and other assets 1,106,966 1,038,972

Property and equipment – at cost (note 5):
Land, buildings and leasehold improvements 301,437 291,878
Computers and related equipment 1,490,765 1,255,455
Furniture and other equipment 152,597 121,572

1,944,799 1,668,905
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 987,606 780,836

Property and equipment, net 957,193 888,069

$4,046,795 $3,493,087

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)
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Computer Sciences Corporation

In thousands except shares April 3, 1998 March 28, 1997

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:
Short - term debt and current maturities of 

long-term debt (note 5) $0,028,921 $0,029,933
Accounts payable 317,787 295,112
Accrued payroll and related costs (note 6) 299,062 252,902
Other accrued expenses 403,860 311,283
Deferred revenue 127,337 112,888
Federal, state and foreign income taxes (note 3) 37,849 30,013

Total current liabilities 1,214,816 1,032,131

Long-term debt, net of current maturities (note 5) 736,054 630,842

Deferred income taxes (note 3) 83,216

Other long-term liabilities (note 6) 94,650 77,338

Commitments and contingencies (notes 6 and 7)

Stockholders’ equity (notes 1, 8 and 9)
Preferred stock, par value $1 per share; 

authorized 1,000,000 shares; none issued
Common stock, par value $1 per share; 

authorized 275,000,000 shares; 
issued 157,324,565 (1998) and 76,924,836 (1997) 157,325 76,925

Additional paid- in capital 660,971 569,719
Earnings retained for use in business 1,236,968 1,055,183
Foreign currency translation and unfunded 

pension adjustments (39,691) (14,625)

2,015,573 1,687,202

Less common stock in treasury, at cost, 
346,170 shares (1998) and 332,220 shares (1997) (13,029) (11,982)

Unearned restricted stock (note 8) (1,142) (1,251)
Notes receivable for shares sold (note 8) (127) (4,409)

Stockholders’ equity, net 2,001,275 1,669,560

$4,046,795 $3,493,087

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Computer Sciences Corporation

Fiscal Year Ended

In thousands, increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents April 3, 1998 March 28, 1997 March 29, 1996

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $(260,369 $(192,413 $(109,431
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided:

Depreciation and amortization 386,854 333,247 272,058
Special items, net of tax 97,870 11,884 73,186
Provision for losses on accounts receivable 20,058 33,501 20,623
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions:

Increase in receivables (221,974) (164,184) (163,517)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (86,815) (39,692) 7,234
Increase in accounts payable and accruals 109,575 97,294 28,768
Increase in income taxes payable 3,683 29,028 25,959
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 13,817 (3,304) 12,518
Other changes, net (133) 10,235 (2,274)

Net cash provided by operating activities 583,304 500,422 383,986

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (349,316) (322,434) (275,841)
Outsourcing contracts (145,974) (102,508) (114,144)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (103,269) (176,693) (76,878)
Dispositions 75,827 6,229 7,380
Purchased and internally developed software (64,052) (77,227) (56,767)
Other investing cash flows, net 4,777 (6,011) (14,555)

Net cash used in investing activities (582,007) (678,644) (530,805)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net borrowing (repayment) of commercial paper 77,953 50,188 (587)
Borrowings under lines of credit 61,281 48,180 78,457
Repayment of borrowings under lines of credit (73,022) (99,283) (38,376)
Proceeds from term debt issuance 32,568 150,000 43,541
Principal payments on long-term debt (10,959) (29,843) (58,476)
Proceeds from stock option transactions 61,488 42,869 18,511
Other financing cash flows 13,356 12,964 10,023

Net cash provided by financing activities 162,665 175,075 53,093

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 163,962 (3,147) (93,726)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 110,726 113,873 207,599

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $(274,688 $(110,726 $(113,873

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity Computer Sciences Corporation

Foreign
Earnings Currency and Notes

Additional Retained Unfunded Common Unearned ReceivableCommon Stock Paid - in for Use in Pension Stock in Restricted for Shares
In thousands except shares Shares Amount Capital Business Adjustments Treasury Stock Sold

Balance at March 31, 1995 74,248,357 $074,248 $465,742 $0,753,339 $(06,652 $0(5,179) $(2,981) $(1,052)
Stock option transactions 1,347,368 1,348 40,460 (5,309) (3,888)
Granting of restricted stock 

of $200 net of amortization 
and forfeitures of $1,093 4,130 4 196 893

Net income 109,431
Currency translation 

adjustment (12,218) (28)
Unfunded pension obligation (1,648)
Retirement of Hogan 

treasury stock (171,233) (171) 171
Repayment of notes 103

Balance at March 29, 1996 75,428,622 75,429 506,569 862,770 (7,214) (10,488) (2,088) (4,865)
Stock option transactions 1,501,214 1,501 63,240 (1,494) (1,125)
Amortization and forfeitures 

of restricted stock (5,000) (5) (90) 837
Net income 192,413
Currency translation 

adjustment (7,182) (24)
Unfunded pension obligation (229)
Repayment of notes 1,605

Balance at March 28, 1997 76,924,836 76,925 569,719 1,055,183 (14,625) (11,982) (1,251) (4,409)
Stock option transactions 2,077,103 2,077 91,252 (1,047)
Amortization and forfeitures 

of restricted stock 109
Net income 260,369
Currency translation 

adjustment (23,287)
Unfunded pension obligation (1,779)
Repayment of notes 4,282
Effect of two-for-one 

stock split 78,322,626 78,323 (78,323)
Stock purchase rights 

redemption (261)

Balance at April 3, 1998 157,324,565 $157,325 $660,971 $1,236,968 $(39,691) $(13,029) $(1,142) $0,(127)

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Computer Sciences Corporation
(Dollars in thousands except per - share amounts)

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include those of Computer Sciences Corporation, its sub-
sidiaries and those joint ventures and partnerships over which it exercises control, hereafter collectively referred to
as “CSC’’ or “the Company.” All material intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. 

Business Combination

On August 1, 1996, CSC acquired The Continuum Company, Inc. (“Continuum”). Upon consummation of the
merger, Continuum became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Each outstanding share of Continuum
common stock was converted into 1.58 shares of common stock of the Company and each outstanding option to
purchase shares of Continuum common stock was converted into an option to purchase 1.58 shares of CSC com-
mon stock. The acquisition has been accounted for as a pooling of interests, and previously reported consolidated
financial statements of the Company for periods ended prior to August 1, 1996 have been restated to include the
financial position and results of operations of Continuum.

Other Acquisitions

On March 15, 1996, Continuum, prior to its merger with CSC, acquired Hogan Systems, Inc. (“Hogan”) through
the issuance of 4,814,000 shares of its common stock (equivalent to 7,606,000 shares of CSC’s common stock). The
acquisition was accounted for as a pooling of interests and, accordingly, the Company’s consolidated financial state-
ments have been restated to include the results of Hogan for all periods presented.

During the three years ended April 3, 1998, the Company made a number of acquisitions in addition to those
described above which, either individually or collectively, are not material. In conjunction with business combina-
tions accounted for as purchases, the Company acquired assets with an estimated fair value of $61,460, $199,302
and $34,497; and assumed liabilities of $47,632, $125,511 and $18,628 for fiscal 1998, 1997 and 1996 respectively.
The excess of cost of businesses acquired over related net assets was $89,028, $139,504 and $22,448 for the three 
fiscal years ended 1998.

Income Recognition

The Company provides services under time and materials, level of effort, cost-based and fixed price contracts. For
time and materials and level of effort types of contracts, income is recorded as the costs are incurred, income being
the difference between such costs and the agreed-upon billing amounts. For cost-based contracts, income is
recorded by applying an estimated factor to costs as incurred, such factor being determined by the contract provi-
sions and prior experience. For fixed price contracts, income is recorded on the basis of the estimated percentage
of completion of services rendered. Losses, if any, on fixed price contracts are recognized during the period in
which the loss is determined. 

Revenues from certain information processing services are recorded at the time the service is utilized by the cus-
tomer. Revenues from sales of proprietary software are generally recognized upon receipt of a signed contract doc-
umenting a customer commitment; however, if significant customization is part of the transaction, such revenues
are recognized over the period of delivery.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Computer Sciences Corporation
(Dollars in thousands except per - share amounts)

Depreciation and Amortization 

The Company’s depreciation and amortization policies are as follows: 

Property and Equipment:
Buildings 10 to 40 years
Computers and related equipment 3 to 10 years
Furniture and other equipment 2 to 10 years
Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease term or useful life

Investments and Other Assets:
Purchased and internally developed software 2 to 10 years
Credit information files 10 to 20 years
Excess of cost of businesses acquired over related net assets Up to 40 years
Deferred contract costs Contract life

For financial reporting purposes, computer equipment is depreciated using either the straight - line or sum-of- the-
years’-digits method, depending on the nature of the equipment’s use. The cost of other property and equipment,
less applicable residual values, is depreciated on the straight-line method. Depreciation commences when the spe-
cific asset is complete, installed and ready for normal use. Investments and other assets are amortized on a straight -
line basis over the years indicated above.

Included in purchased and internally developed software are unamortized capitalized software development costs
of $76,969 and $71,709 as of April 3, 1998 and March 28, 1997, respectively. The related amortization expense was
$17,358, $20,073 and $19,947 for the three fiscal years ended 1998. During March 1996, $20,200 of capitalized soft-
ware was written off to reflect a decline in net realizable value associated primarily with changes in market condi-
tions and changes in business strategy relating to certain banking products. 

Included in other assets are deferred contract costs related to the initial purchase of assets under outsourcing con-
tracts. The balance of such costs, net of amortization, was $102,723 and $89,378 for fiscal 1998 and 1997, respec-
tively. The related amortization expense was $15,371, $12,112 and $12,764 for the three fiscal years ended 1998.

The Company evaluates at least annually the recoverability of its excess cost of businesses acquired over related net
assets. In assessing recoverability, the current and future profitability of the related operations are considered,
along with management’s plans with respect to the operations and the projected undiscounted cash flows.

Cash Flows

Cash payments for interest on indebtedness and taxes on income are as follows:

Fiscal Year

1998 1997 1996

Interest $50,909 $37,910 $36,322
Taxes on income 30,613 63,899 50,703

For purposes of reporting cash and cash equivalents, the Company considers all investments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company’s investments consist of high quali-
ty securities issued by a number of institutions having high credit ratings, thereby limiting the Company’s exposure
to concentrations of credit risk. With respect to financial instruments, the Company’s carrying amounts of its other
current assets and liabilities were deemed to approximate their market values due to their short maturity. The
Company has no material hedge contracts with respect to its foreign exchange or interest rate positions.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Computer Sciences Corporation
(Dollars in thousands except per - share amounts)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires man-
agement to make estimates and assumptions, in particular estimates of anticipated contract costs utilized in the rev-
enue recognition process, that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Stock Split

All share data with the exception of prior year share amounts in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and Consolidated
Statements of Stockholders’ Equity have been restated to reflect the two-for-one stock split in the form of a 100%
stock dividend paid on March 23, 1998.

Earnings per Share

During fiscal 1998, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 128,
“Earnings per Share.” This statement requires presentation of both basic and diluted EPS and restatement of all
prior-period EPS data presented. Basic earnings per common share are computed using the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect the incremental
shares issuable upon the assumed exercise of stock options. 

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated as follows:

Fiscal Year

1998 1997 1996

Net income for basic and diluted EPS $260,369 $192,413 $109,431

Common share information (in thousands)
Average common shares outstanding 

for basic EPS 155,125 151,895 148,865
Dilutive effect of stock options 3,401 4,499 4,205

Shares for diluted EPS 158,526 156,394 153,070

Basic EPS $0001.68 $0001.27 $0000.74
Diluted EPS 1.64 1.23 0.71

In accordance with SFAS No. 128, the computation of diluted EPS did not include stock options which were antidi-
lutive, as their exercise price was greater than the average market price of the Company’s common stock during
the year. The number of such options was 95,310, 249,813 and 136,973 at April 3, 1998, March 27, 1997 and March
28, 1996, respectively.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Financial Accounting Standards Board recently issued SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income,”
SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” and SFAS No. 132,
“Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and other Postretirement Benefits.” During fiscal 1999, the Company will
adopt these standards, which will expand or modify disclosures but will have no impact on consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows. 

In October 1997, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants issued Statement of Position (“SOP”) 97-2,
“Software Revenue Recognition,” which supercedes SOP 91-1, “Software Revenue Recognition.” SOP 97-2 provides
further guidance on recognizing revenue from sales of proprietary software and is effective for transactions CSC
enters into beginning in fiscal 1999. The Company does not expect the adoption of SOP 97-2 to have a material
impact on consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Computer Sciences Corporation
(Dollars in thousands except per - share amounts)

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years’ financial statements in order to conform to the current
presentation.

Note 2 — Special Items

Special items in fiscal 1998 represent costs, expenses, and benefits associated with developments at CSC Enterprises
and the Company’s response to a failed take-over attempt.

During the fiscal quarter ended June 27, 1997, CSC recognized a net special credit of $1,707, or 1 cent per share, at
CSC Enterprises, a general partnership of which CSC, through one of its affiliates, is the managing general part-
ner. This net credit resulted from a tax benefit of $135,000 and an after- tax special charge of $133,293 ($208,393
before tax). During the fiscal quarter ended June 27, 1997, several partners withdrew from CSC Enterprises. As a
result of these withdrawals, CSC Enterprises took actions that caused CSC to recognize an increase in the tax basis
of certain assets. As required by SFAS No. 109, this tax basis increase resulted in a permanent difference between
the tax and book basis of certain assets, which established a deferred tax asset of $135,000 and a corresponding
reduction of CSC’s provision for income taxes during the quarter ended June 27, 1997. In connection with these
developments, CSC Enterprises reviewed its operations, its market opportunities and the carrying value of its assets.
Based on this review, certain offerings and assets were eliminated, primarily within its telecommunications opera-
tions. As a result, CSC recognized an after- tax special charge of $133,293 during the fiscal quarter ended June 27,
1997. This special charge included goodwill of $35,000, contract termination costs of $34,000, deferred contract
costs and other assets of $20,000, telecommunications software and accruals of $22,000, telecommunications prop-
erty, equipment and intangible assets of $12,000 and other costs of $10,000.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 1998, the Company recorded a before-tax special charge of $20,700, or 9 cents per
share after tax, for costs relating to the Company’s response to a failed take-over attempt. The charge is comprised
of $14,000 for investment banking expenses and $6,700 for other expenses such as legal costs, public relations and
shareholder communications.

The fiscal 1997 special charge represents costs and expenses related to the August 1 acquisition of Continuum. The
amount of the charge, net of income tax benefits on the tax deductible portion, is $35,280, or 23 cents per share.
The charge is composed of $11,040 for investment banking and other merger expenses; $11,785 related to the
write -off of certain capitalized software, other assets and intangibles; and $26,104 related to the elimination of
duplicate data processing facilities, employee severance costs and contract termination costs.

In connection with the fiscal 1996 acquisition of Hogan discussed in note 1, Continuum effected a plan to inte-
grate, restructure and realign its expanded business. As a result, approximately $50,100 of special charges were
expensed, including $9,600 of transaction and $9,800 of restructuring costs (which includes the consolidation of
facilities and data processing and employee terminations). In addition, non-cash adjustments to the carrying value
of certain tangible and intangible assets of $30,700 were recorded, including $20,200 to capitalized software.

Fiscal 1996 charges also included $26,000, related to an acquisition, which was assigned to purchased research and
development and subsequently expensed with no income tax benefit. The combined fiscal 1996 after-tax special
charges recorded were $61,800, or 40 cents per share.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Computer Sciences Corporation
(Dollars in thousands except per - share amounts)

Note 3 — Income Taxes

The sources of income before taxes, classified as between domestic entities and those entities domiciled outside of
the United States, are as follows: 

Fiscal Year

1998 1997 1996

Domestic entities $096,438 $270,353 $198,571
Entities outside the United States 94,431 32,960 (1,641)

$190,869 $303,313 $196,930

The provisions (credits) for taxes on income, classified as between current and deferred and as between taxing
jurisdictions, consist of the following:

Fiscal Year

1998 1997 1996

Current portion:
Federal $(12,275) $083,185 $27,611
State (2,051) 12,065 2,282
Foreign 39,299 10,529 14,258

24,973 105,779 44,151

Deferred portion:
Federal (82,170) 3,566 38,980
State (8,812) 664 7,540
Foreign (3,491) 891 (3,172)

(94,473) 5,121 43,348

Total provision (credit) for taxes $(69,500) $110,900 $87,499

Included in the fiscal 1998 current portion is $27,000 (composed of $26,200 federal and $800 state) of the $135,000
deferred tax asset described in Note 2 and $81,900 related to the other fiscal 1998 special items, also described in
Note 2. The fiscal 1998 deferred portion includes the remaining $108,000 (composed of $104,800 federal and
$3,200 state) of the $135,000 deferred tax asset.

The major elements contributing to the difference between the federal statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate
are as follows:

Fiscal Year

1998 1997 1996

Statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income tax, less effect of federal deduction 2.2 2.8 3.7
Goodwill amortization .4 .6 1.8
Utilization of tax credits/losses (2.2) (1.9) (.2)
Special items (71.5) 1.2 4.9
Other (.3) (1.1) (.8)

Effective tax rate (36.4)% 36.6% 44.4%
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Computer Sciences Corporation
(Dollars in thousands except per - share amounts)

The fiscal 1998 special items percentage relates principally to the $135,000 tax benefit described in Note 2. The fis-
cal 1997 and 1996 special items percentages are the result of non-deductible acquisition-related costs.

The tax effects of significant temporary differences that comprise deferred tax balances are as follows:

April 3, 1998 March 28, 1997

Deferred tax assets (liabilities)
Deferred income $(001,457 $(002,055
Employee benefits (1,421) 788
Provisions for contract settlement 4,121 16,047
Currency exchange 18,909 (623)
Other assets 22,438 8,096
Contract accounting (109,343) (90,963)
Depreciation and amortization 54,420 (73,921)
Prepayments (41,083) (7,460)
Tax loss/credit carryforwards 20,231
Other assets (liabilities) (998) 4,967

Total deferred taxes $0(31,269) $(141,014)

Of the above deferred amounts, $111,277 and $57,799 are included in current income taxes payable at April 3,
1998 and March 28, 1997, respectively.

During fiscal 1996, the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) completed its examination of the Company’s consolidated
federal income tax returns for fiscal years 1987 through 1991, and assessed the Company additional federal income
tax plus interest. The Company filed a protest during fiscal 1996 regarding the assessment and took the issue before
the Appeals Division of the IRS. During fiscal 1998, the Appeals Division completed its review of the matter and is
in the process of completing their report. The results are not expected to have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Note 4 — Receivables

Receivables consist of the following:

April 3, 1998 March 28, 1997

Billed trade accounts $1,043,703 $0,884,772
Recoverable amounts under contracts in progress 366,778 376,266
Other receivables 45,849 32,965

$1,456,330 $1,294,003
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Computer Sciences Corporation
(Dollars in thousands except per - share amounts)

Amounts due under long-term contracts include the following items:

April 3, 1998 March 28, 1997

Included in billed trade accounts receivable:
Amounts retained in accordance with contract terms, 

due upon completion or other specified event $003,556 $008,848

Included in recoverable amounts under contracts in progress:
Amounts on fixed price contracts not billable in 

accordance with contract terms until some future date $240,814 $231,115
Amounts retained in accordance with contract terms, 

due upon completion or other specified event 23,246 31,072
Excess of costs over provisional billings, awaiting 

clearance for final billing or future negotiation 6,593 26,056
Accrued award fees 14,647 12,120
Amounts on completed work, negotiated and awaiting 

contractual document 3,670 4,106
Unrecovered costs related to claims 3,902 4,554

$292,872 $309,023

The recoverable amounts under contracts in progress which have not yet been billed comprise amounts of contract
revenue not billable at the balance sheet date. Such amounts generally become billable upon completion of a spec-
ified phase of the contract, negotiation of contract modifications, completion of government audit activities, or
upon acceptance by the customer. 

All items relating to long-term contracts shown above are expected to be collected during fiscal 1999 except for
$3,896 of unrecovered costs related to claims and $118,949 of other items to be collected during fiscal 2000 and
thereafter. The unrecovered costs related to claims are recorded at net realizable value and consist primarily of
amounts due under long-term contracts which are pending determination by negotiation or legal proceedings.

Note 5 — Debt

Short - term

At April 3, 1998, the Company had uncommitted lines of credit of $45,000 with domestic banks. As of April 3, 1998,
the Company had no borrowings outstanding under these lines of credit. 

At April 3, 1998, the Company also had uncommitted lines of credit of $101,393 with certain foreign banks. As of
April 3, 1998, the Company had $24,626 of borrowings outstanding under these lines of credit. These short - term
lines of credit carry no commitment fees or significant covenants. At April 3, 1998, the weighted average interest
rate on borrowings under these short - term lines of credit was 4.7%. At March 28, 1997, the rate was 5.0%.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Computer Sciences Corporation
(Dollars in thousands except per - share amounts)

Long- term

April 3, 1998 March 28, 1997

Commercial paper $375,023 $296,937
6.8% term notes, due April 1999 150,000 150,000
6.5% term notes, due November 2001 150,000 150,000
Capitalized lease liabilities, at varying interest rates, 

payable in monthly installments through fiscal 2003 21,603 17,451
Notes payable, at varying interest rates (from 3.5% to 6.5%) 

through fiscal 2004 61,239 26,076

Total long-term debt 757,865 640,464
Less current maturities 21,811 9,622

$736,054 $630,842

The weighted average interest rate on the Company’s commercial paper was 5.5% and 5.4% at April 3, 1998 and
March 28, 1997, respectively.

Capitalized lease liabilities shown above represent amounts due under leases for the use of computers and related
equipment. Included in property and equipment are related assets of $18,895 (1998) and $11,823 (1997), less accu-
mulated amortization of $5,378 and $6,055, respectively.

Certain of the Company’s borrowing arrangements contain covenants that require the Company to maintain cer-
tain financial ratios and that limit the amount of dividend payments. Under the most restrictive requirement,
approximately $1,066,000 of retained earnings were available for cash dividends at April 3, 1998.

The carrying value of the Company’s long-term debt is $757,865 at April 3, 1998, as shown above. The correspond-
ing fair value approximates the carrying value using the current interest rates available to the Company for debt of
the same remaining maturities.

Maturities of long-term debt by fiscal year are $21,811 (1999), $541,529 (2000), $13,538 (2001), $158,010 (2002),
$1,006 (2003) and $21,971 thereafter.

Note 6 — Retirement Plans

Pensions 

The Company and its subsidiaries have several pension plans, as described below.

A contributory, defined benefit pension plan is generally available to U.S. employees. The benefits under this plan
are based on years of participation and the employee’s compensation over the entire period of participation. It is
the Company’s funding policy to make contributions to the plan as required by applicable regulations. Certain
non-U.S. employees are enrolled in defined benefit pension plans in the country of domicile. The benefits for
these plans generally are based on years of participation and the employee’s average compensation during the final
years of employment. In addition, the Company has a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP”) and a
Nonemployee Director Retirement Plan, which are nonqualified, noncontributory pension plans. The SERP is a
defined benefit retirement plan for designated officers and key executives of the Company. It restores benefits lim-
ited by tax regulations and provides for additional benefits based on years of service and the participant’s average
compensation during a final period of employment. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Computer Sciences Corporation
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Net periodic pension cost for U.S. and non-U.S. pension plans included the following components: 

Fiscal Year

1998 1997 1996

Service cost -benefits earned during the year $(54,629 $(42,831 $(32,351
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 50,469 36,553 28,590
Actual return on assets (98,071) (61,133) (68,449)
Net amortization and deferral:

Amortization of initial net obligations 
(net assets) 280 (320) (538)

Amortization of prior service costs 2,830 1,703 1,432
Amortization of net loss 965 999 518
Asset gain deferred 43,757 21,503 37,893

Net periodic pension cost $(54,859 $(42,136 $(31,797

The following table sets forth the funded status and amounts recognized in the Company’s consolidated balance
sheets: 

Fiscal Year

1998 1997

Assets Exceed Accumulated Assets Exceed Accumulated
Accumulated Benefit Accumulated Benefit

Benefit Obligations Benefit Obligations
Obligations Exceed Assets Obligations Exceed Assets

Actuarial present value of benefit 
obligations:

Vested benefit obligation $(602,062) $(68,904) $(446,978) $(28,774)

Accumulated benefit obligation $(628,771) $(84,741) $(475,791) $(41,408)

Projected benefit obligation $(820,390) $(92,594) $(570,739) $(44,743)
Plan assets at fair market value 848,336 53,826 604,969 14,387

Projected benefit obligation less than 
(in excess of) plan assets 27,946 (38,768) 34,230 (30,356)

Unrecognized net (gain) loss (67,949) 13,402 (42,796) 4,865
Prior service cost not yet recognized 

in net periodic pension cost 19,820 2,968 11,308 4,585
Unrecognized net obligation being 

amortized over future service 
periods of plan participants 877 4,406 2,677 759

Adjustment to reflect minimum 
liability (8,775) (8,762)

Contribution in fourth fiscal quarter 2,560 1,940

Pension (liability) asset $0(16,746) $(26,767) $(007,359 $(28,909)
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Assumptions used in the accounting for the Company’s plans were:

Fiscal Year

1998 1997 1996

U.S. plans
Discount or settlement rate 7.25% 7.50% 7.50%
Rates of increase in compensation levels 4.00–5.92 4.00–6.17 4.00–6.17
Expected long-term rate of return on assets 8.50 8.50 8.50

Non-U.S. plans
Discount or settlement rates 3.50–7.50 6.00–8.00 7.00–9.00
Rates of increase in compensation levels 2.50–5.00 3.50–6.00 3.50–6.50
Expected long-term rates of return on assets 6.00–8.25 6.00–9.00 7.00–9.25

Plan assets include equity and fixed income securities, real estate investments, insurance contracts and short term
investments.

The Company sponsors several defined contribution plans for substantially all U.S. employees and certain foreign
employees. The plans allow employees to contribute a portion of their earnings in accordance with specified guide-
lines. At April 3, 1998, plan assets included 5,729,033 shares of the Company’s common stock. During fiscal 1998,
1997 and 1996, the Company contributed $35,216, $29,772 and $20,809, respectively.

Other Postretirement Benefits

The Company provides healthcare and life insurance benefits for certain retired U.S. employees, generally for
those employed prior to August 1992. It is the Company’s funding policy to make contributions to the related plans
as required for recovery on government contracts. Most non-U.S. employees are covered by government sponsored
programs at no direct cost to the Company other than related payroll taxes. The net periodic postretirement bene-
fit costs, relating principally to retiree healthcare, amounted to $4,496, $4,931 and $5,100 in fiscal 1998, 1997 and
1996, respectively.

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost included the following components:

Fiscal Year

1998 1997 1996

Service cost, benefits earned during the period $(0,662 $(0,865 $(0,831
Interest cost on accumulated benefit obligation 3,044 3,031 3,018
Actual return on plan assets (3,543) (1,565) (1,463)
Amortization of initial obligation 1,633 1,633 1,633
Amortization of prior service cost 490 36
Amortization of net gain (389) (44) (42)
Asset gain deferred 2,599 975 1,123

Net provision for postretirement benefits $(4,496 $(4,931 $(5,100
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The status of the plan and amounts recognized in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets are as follows:

April 3, 1998 March 28, 1997

Actuarial present value of benefit obligation applicable to:
Retirees $(21,456) $(20,302)
Fully eligible plan participants (6,510) (3,518)
Other active plan participants (19,860) (13,109)

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation (47,826) (36,929)
Plan assets at fair market value 20,311 12,721

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation in excess 
of plan assets (27,515) (24,208)

Unrecognized net gain (7,481) (9,419)
Unrecognized transition obligation 23,726 25,359
Prior service cost not yet recognized in net periodic 

postretirement benefit cost 4,900 649

Accrued postretirement benefit liability $0(6,370) $0(7,619)

The assumed rate of return on plan assets was 8.5% and 7.5% for fiscal 1998 and 1997, respectively, and the discount
rate used to estimate the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was 7.25% and 7.5% for fiscal 1998 and
1997, respectively. Plan assets include equity and fixed income securities and short term investments. The assumed
healthcare cost trend rate used in measuring the expected benefit obligation was 8.5% for fiscal 1998, declining to
5.0% for 2004 and subsequent years. A one-percentage point increase in the assumed healthcare cost trend rate
would increase the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of April 3, 1998, and the net periodic post-
retirement benefit cost for fiscal 1998 by $5,123 and $561, respectively.

Note 7 — Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments 

The Company has operating leases for the use of certain property and equipment. Substantially all operating leases
are noncancelable or cancelable only by the payment of penalties. All lease payments are based on the lapse of time
but include, in some cases, payments for insurance, maintenance and property taxes. There are no purchase
options on operating leases at favorable terms, but most leases have one or more renewal options. Certain leases
on real property are subject to annual escalations for increases in utilities and property taxes. Lease rental expense
amounted to $183,128 (1998), $162,777 (1997), and $148,088 (1996).

Minimum fixed rentals required for the next five years and thereafter under operating leases in effect at April 3,
1998 are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Real Estate Equipment

1999 $079,260 $50,163
2000 66,041 21,672
2001 55,192 7,526
2002 44,456 1,844
2003 36,300 127
Thereafter 100,636 44

$381,885 $81,376
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DST Systems, Inc., a shareholder of the Company, provides data processing and consulting services and licenses
certain software products to the Company. During the fiscal years ended April 3, 1998, March 28, 1997 and March
29, 1996, the Company incurred aggregate expenses of $27,271, $22,788 and $22,647, respectively, related thereto,
which are included in costs of services.

Contingencies

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk are primarily accounts
receivable. The Company’s customer base includes Fortune 500 companies, the U.S. Federal government, and
other significant, well -known companies operating in North America, Europe and the Pacific Rim. Credit risk with
respect to accounts receivable is minimized because of the nature and diversification of the Company’s customer
base. Furthermore, the Company continuously reviews its accounts receivables and records provisions for doubtful
accounts as needed.

The Company is currently party to a number of disputes which involve or may involve litigation. After consultation
with counsel, it is the opinion of Company management that ultimate liability, if any, with respect to these disputes
will not be material to the Company’s results of operations or financial position.

Note 8 — Stock Incentive Plans

Stock Options

The Company has seven stock incentive plans which authorize the issuance of stock options, restricted stock and
other stock-based incentives to employees upon terms approved by the Compensation Committee. In addition, on
August 1, 1996, in connection with the acquisition of Continuum, the Company assumed outstanding employee
and non-employee director options to purchase an aggregate of 2,976,000 shares of Continuum common stock at
an average exercise price of 26.77 per share (which is equivalent to 4,702,000 shares of CSC common stock at an
average exercise price of $16.95 per share), and shares of restricted Continuum common stock were converted into
45,232 shares of restricted CSC common stock. At April 3, 1998, March 28, 1997 and March 29, 1996, 1,938,838,
4,588,930 and 6,852,000 shares, respectively, of CSC common stock were available for the grant to employees of
future stock options, restricted stock or other stock-based incentives.

Information concerning stock options granted under stock incentive plans is as follows:

Fiscal Year

1998 1997 1996

Number Weighted Average Number Weighted Average Number Weighted Average
of Shares Exercise Price of Shares Exercise Price of Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding, 
beginning of year 13,157,762 $20.22 13,972,880 $15.45 14,327,886 $12.77

Granted 3,285,950 35.36 3,148,736 34.74 2,657,384 24.75
Exercised (3,820,152) 15.20 (2,918,180) 12.77 (2,367,032) 9.39
Canceled (776,702) 28.83 (1,045,674) 20.90 (645,358) 16.51

Outstanding, end of year 11,846,858 25.48 13,157,762 20.23 13,972,880 15.45

Exercisable, end of year 4,261,089 $16.21 5,412,886 $13.79 4,761,898 $11.19
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April 3, 1998

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted
Weighted Average Weighted

Number Average Remaining Number Average
Range of Option Exercise Price Outstanding Exercise Price Contractual Life Exercisable Exercise Price

$00.17–$12.17 2,520,076 $10.12 4.0 2,117,491 $09.84
$12.25–$22.69 2,416,970 17.93 6.1 1,386,796 17.26
$23.38–$33.50 1,276,640 26.03 7.5 276,200 26.27
$33.75–$33.94 2,541,400 33.93 9.1 19,070 33.76
$34.00–$53.28 3,091,772 36.72 8.5 461,532 35.59

The Company uses the intrinsic value based method of accounting for stock options, under which compensation
cost is equal to the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the stock at the option grant date over the exercise
price, and is amortized over the vesting period. Compensation cost recognized with respect to stock options was
$377, $442 and $213 for fiscal 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively.

Restricted Stock

Restricted stock awards consist of shares of common stock of the Company sold at par value ($1 per share). Upon
sale to an employee, shares of restricted stock become outstanding, receive dividends and have voting rights. The
shares are subject to forfeiture and to restrictions which limit the sale or transfer during the restriction period.

The restrictions on shares of Continuum restricted stock lapse ratably on the first five anniversaries of the date of
sale, and were granted coincident with cash bonuses aggregating $211 during the fiscal year ended March 29, 1996.
The restrictions on shares of CSC restricted stock (other than Continuum restricted stock) generally lapse on the
fifth, sixth and seventh anniversaries of the date of sale.

At April 3, 1998, March 28, 1997 and March 29, 1996, 165,302, 296,482 and 400,348 shares, respectively, of CSC
restricted stock were outstanding, net of shares forfeited by or repurchased from terminated employees, and shares
for which the restrictions have lapsed.

The Company uses the intrinsic value based method of accounting for restricted stock, under which compensation
cost is equal to the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the stock at the date of sale to the employee over
the sales price, and is amortized over the restriction period. Compensation cost recognized with respect to restricted
stock was $645, $742 and $1,049 during fiscal 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively.

Restricted Stock Units

During fiscal 1998, the Company adopted a stock incentive plan which authorizes the issuance of stock options,
restricted stock and other stock-based incentives to nonemployee directors upon terms approved by the Company’s
Board of Directors. As of April 3, 1998, 22,488 restricted stock units (“RSUs”) had been awarded to nonemployee
directors under this plan and were outstanding on that date.

When a holder of RSUs ceases to be a director of the Company, the RSUs are automatically redeemed for shares
of CSC common stock and dividend equivalents with respect to such shares. At the holder’s election, which must
be made within 30 days after the date of the award, the RSUs may be redeemed (i) as an entirety, upon the day the
holder ceases to be a director, or (ii) in substantially equal amounts upon the first five, ten or fifteen anniversaries
of such day.

There are two types of RSUs: (i) those awarded in lieu of vested retirement benefits under other plans (“Accrued
Benefit RSUs”); and (ii) those awarded as a form of future retirement benefits (“Future Benefit RSUs”). When a
holder of Accrued Benefit RSUs ceases to be a director of the Company, the number of shares of CSC common
stock to be delivered by the Company upon redemption of the RSUs is equal to the number of such RSUs awarded.
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When a holder of Future Benefit RSUs ceases to be a director, the number of shares to be delivered upon redemp-
tion is equal to 20% of the number of such RSUs awarded, multiplied by the number of full years (but not in excess
of 5) that the holder served as a director after the date of award.

At April 3, 1998, 8,778 Accrued Benefit RSUs and 13,710 Future Benefit RSUs were outstanding, and 77,512 shares
of CSC common stock remained available for the grant to nonemployee directors of future RSUs or other stock-
based incentives.

The Company uses the intrinsic value based method of accounting for RSUs, under which compensation cost is
equal to 100% of the total number of the RSUs awarded, multiplied by the quoted market price of the stock at the
date of award, and is amortized, in the case of Future Benefit RSUs, over the vesting period. Compensation cost
recognized with respect to RSUs was $413 for fiscal 1998.

Pro Forma Information

The following pro forma net income and earnings per share information has been determined as if the Company
had accounted for stock-based compensation awarded under the stock incentive plans using the fair value based
method. Under the fair value method, the estimated fair value of stock option awards would be charged against
income on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. The effects on pro forma disclosures of applying SFAS No.
123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” are not likely to be representative of the effects on pro forma dis-
closures of future years, because SFAS No. 123 is applicable only to options granted subsequent to fiscal 1995.

Fiscal Year

1998 1997 1996

As Reported Pro Forma As Reported Pro Forma As Reported Pro Forma

Net income $260,369 $246,161 $192,413 $182,649 $109,431 $106,063 
Basic earnings per share 1.68 1.59 1.27 1.20 0.74 0.71 
Diluted earnings per share 1.64 1.55 1.23 1.17 0.71 0.69 

The weighted average fair values of stock options granted during fiscal 1998, 1997 and 1996 were $12.08, $11.53
and $8.11, respectively. The fair value of each stock option was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions used for grants in 1998, 1997 and
1996, respectively: risk- free interest rates of 6.43%, 6.55% and 6.16%; expected volatility of 28%, 26% and 26%;
and expected lives in years of 6.06, 5.75 and 5.75.

Promissory Notes

Certain acquired companies sold shares of their common stock to employees and directors in exchange for non-
interest bearing promissory notes secured by the shares. The outstanding principal balances of these notes 
amounted to $127 at April 3, 1998 and are classified as a reduction of stockholders’ equity.

Note 9 — Stockholder Purchase Rights Plan

On December 21, 1988, the Company adopted a stockholder rights plan pursuant to which it issued one right for
each outstanding share of its common stock. On February 27, 1998, the Company’s Board of Directors redeemed
these rights for one sixth of one cent per right. The redemption price was paid after the end of fiscal 1998 to the
holders of record of rights as of the close of business March 30, 1998.

On February 18, 1998, the Company adopted a new stockholder rights plan pursuant to which it issued one right
for each outstanding share of its common stock. These rights, which are attached to and trade only together with
the common stock, are not currently exercisable. On the tenth business day after any person or entity becomes the
beneficial owner of 10% or more of CSC’s common stock, each right (other than rights held by the 10% stock-
holder, which will become void) will become exercisable to purchase, for $250, CSC common stock having a market
value of $500. The rights expire February 18, 2008, and may be redeemed by the Board of Directors at $.0005 per
right at any time before they become exercisable.
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Note 10 — Segment and Geographic Information

The Company’s business involves operations in principally one industry segment, providing management and
information technology consulting, systems integration and outsourcing. CSC operates primarily in the United
States, Europe, Australia and other Pacific Rim countries.

Fiscal Year

1998 1997 1996

Revenues
United States $4,406,236 $3,795,361 $3,342,317
Europe 1,770,955 1,474,933 1,109,616
Other 423,647 345,754 288,827

Total $6,600,838 $5,616,048 $4,740,760

Operating income
United States $0,165,625 $0,342,353 $0,248,642
Europe 108,788 32,998 6,514
Other 14,355 1,198 11,737

Total $0,288,768 $0,376,549 $0,266,893

Identifiable assets at year end
United States $2,579,269 $2,608,849 $1,844,305
Europe 1,193,131 726,953 931,183
Other 274,395 157,285 160,531

Total $4,046,795 $3,493,087 $2,936,019

Operating income is generally calculated as total revenue less operating expenses, without adding or deducting cor-
porate general and administrative costs, interest income and expense, income taxes or other items. Operating
expenses include special charges.

The composition of the special charges included in the operating income above is as follows:

Fiscal Year

1998 1997 1996

United States $229,093 $27,247 $42,138
Europe 10,300 31,816
Other 11,382 2,099

Total $229,093 $48,929 $76,053
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The Company derives a significant portion of its revenues from departments and agencies of the United States 
government. At April 3, 1998, approximately 27% of the Company’s accounts receivable were due from the feder-
al government. Federal government revenues by agency/department are as follows:

Fiscal Year

1998 1997 1996

Amount Percent of Total Amount Percent of Total Amount Percent of Total

Department of Defense $1,071,958 16% $1,082,885 19% $0,961,587 20%
National Aeronautics and 

Space Administration 298,592 5% 299,388 5% 310,053 7%
Other civil agencies 260,183 4% 253,394 5% 299,859 6%

Total $1,630,733 25% $1,635,667 29% $1,571,499 33%

Note 11 — Agreements with Equifax

During fiscal 1989, the Company entered into an agreement (the “Operating Agreement”) with Equifax Inc. and
its subsidiary, Equifax Credit Information Services, Inc. (“ECIS”), pursuant to which certain of the Company’s sub-
sidiaries (collectively, the “Bureaus”) became affiliated credit bureaus of ECIS and purchase credit reporting ser-
vices from the ECIS system for resale to their customers. The Bureaus retain ownership of their credit files stored
in the ECIS system and receive revenues generated from the sale of the credit information they contain. The
Bureaus pay ECIS a fee for storing and maintaining the files and for each report supplied by the ECIS system.

Pursuant to the Operating Agreement, the Company has an option to require ECIS to purchase the collections
business (the “Collections Put Option”), and a separate option to require ECIS to purchase the credit reporting
business and, if not previously sold, the collections business (the “Credit Reporting Put Option”). Both options
require six months’ advance notice and expire on August 1, 2013.

On November 25, 1997, the Collections Put Option was exercised and the collections business was sold for approx-
imately $38,000. The transaction was consummated after the end of fiscal 1998.

The exercise price of the Credit Reporting Put Option is determined by certain financial formulas if notice of exer-
cise is given on or prior to July 31, 1998. In the opinion of management, the exercise price of the Credit Reporting
Put Option on or prior to July 31, 1998, as determined using consistent methods of calculation under the financial
formulas, approximated $526,000 at April 3, 1998. In its annual report for the year ended December 31, 1997,
Equifax Inc. stated that this exercise price is currently estimated at approximately $375,000. Both amounts have
been reduced to reflect the sale of the collections business, which occurred after April 3, 1998.

If notice of exercise of the Credit Reporting Put Option is given after July 31, 1998, the exercise price is equal to
the appraised value of the assets subject to the option.

The Operating Agreement has a 10-year term, which will automatically be renewed indefinitely for successive 10-
year periods unless the Company gives notice of termination at least six months prior to the expiration of any such
term. In the event that on or prior to August 1, 2013 (i) the Company gives such notice of termination and does
not exercise the Credit Reporting Put Option prior to the termination of the then-current term or (ii) there is a
change in control of the Company, then ECIS has an option for 60 days after the date of such event to require the
Company to sell to it the credit reporting business at the Credit Reporting Put Option exercise price.

Effective December 1990, the Company established a joint venture, named CSC Enterprises, to operate the
Company’s credit services and collections businesses, and to carry out other business strategies through acquisition
and investment. The joint venture is structured as a general partnership, and an affiliate of the Company is the
managing general partner. The Company assigned to this partnership its credit reporting and collections busi-
nesses and all of its rights under the Operating Agreement.
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As of March 28, 1997, the partners of CSC Enterprises included affiliates of CSC, affiliates of Equifax Inc., and Merel
Corporation. As described in Note 2, during the fiscal quarter ended June 27, 1997 the Equifax affiliates withdrew
from CSC Enterprises and CSC recognized a deferred tax asset of $135,000 and an after- tax special charge 
of $133,293.

As of April 3, 1998, the partners of CSC Enterprises included the Company, certain affiliates of the Company and
Merel Corporation. The Company’s rights under the Operating Agreement, including its put option exercise
rights, remain exercisable by the Company through its affiliates.
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Report of Management Computer Sciences Corporation

The financial statements included in this report are the responsibility of Computer Sciences Corporation manage-
ment and have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These financial state-
ments include amounts that are based upon management’s best estimates and judgement. All financial data includ-
ed in this report is consistent with the information included in the financial statements.

The Company maintains a system of internal accounting controls, which in the opinion of management provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and that transactions are executed and recorded in accordance
with management’s authorization. The system is tested and evaluated on a regular basis by the Company’s internal
auditors as well as by the independent auditors during their annual audit. To assure the effective administration of
internal controls, the Company carefully selects and trains its employees and provides them with a written Code of
Ethics and Standards of Conduct.

The Board of Directors has appointed an Audit Committee composed entirely of outside directors who are not
members of management. The Audit Committee meets regularly with management, the internal auditors and the
independent auditors to ensure that each is properly discharging its responsibilities. The independent auditors and
internal auditors may periodically meet alone with the Audit Committee to discuss appropriate matters.

Van B. Honeycutt Leon J. Level
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Computer Sciences Corporation
El Segundo, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Computer Sciences Corporation and
Subsidiaries (the Company) as of April 3, 1998 and March 28, 1997, and the related consolidated statements of
income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended April 3, 1998. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opin-
ion on these financial statements based on our audits. These consolidated financial statements give retroactive
effect to the merger of Computer Sciences Corporation and The Continuum Company, Inc. on August 1, 1996,
which has been accounted for as a pooling of interests as described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial 
statements. We did not audit the financial statements of The Continuum Company, Inc. for the year ended 
March 31, 1996. Such statements reflect aggregate total revenues constituting 11% in 1996 of the consolidated
totals. Those statements were audited by other auditors, whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for The Continuum Company, Inc. is based solely on the report of 
the other auditor.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclo-
sures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors, such consolidated financial statements pre-
sent fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Computer Sciences Corporation and Subsidiaries as of
April 3, 1998 and March 28, 1997, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended April 3, 1998, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Los Angeles, California
May 26, 1998
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Fiscal 1998

In thousands except per - share amounts lst Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Revenues $1,488,750 $1,578,824 $1,664,092 $1,869,172
Income before taxes (127,612) 92,353 106,632 119,496
Net income 52,588 58,553 69,132 80,096
Net earnings per share:

Basic 0.34 0.38 0.44 0.51
Diluted 0.33 0.37 0.44 0.50

Fiscal 1997

lst Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Revenues $1,303,892 $1,355,255 $1,421,638 $1,535,263
Income before taxes 71,773 27,010 87,690 116,840
Net income 45,277 14,006 57,390 75,740
Net earnings per share:

Basic 0.30 0.09 0.38 0.49
Diluted 0.29 0.09 0.37 0.48

Fiscal 1996

lst Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Revenues $1,082,963 $1,128,648 $1,236,674 $1,292,475
Income before taxes 56,622 62,900 46,105 31,303
Net income 35,941 39,569 19,721 14,200
Net earnings per share:

Basic 0.24 0.27 0.13 0.10
Diluted 0.24 0.26 0.13 0.09

A discussion of “special items” for the three fiscal years ended 1998 is included in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
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In thousands except per - share amounts April 3, 1998 March 28, 1997 March 29, 1996 March 31, 1995 April 1, 1994

Total assets $4,046,795 $3,493,087 $2,936,019 $2,631,580 $2,064,192
Debt:

Long-term 736,054 630,842 426,634 335,696 292,493
Short - term 7,110 20,311 71,422 128,237 17,772
Current maturities 21,811 9,622 6,917 11,933 35,761

Total 764,975 660,775 504,973 475,866 346,026
Stockholders’ equity 2,001,275 1,669,560 1,420,113 1,290,769 912,497
Working capital 767,820 533,915 430,484 390,726 249,020
Property and equipment:

At cost 1,944,799 1,668,905 1,249,729 994,520 778,376
Accumulated depreciation 

and amortization 987,606 780,836 569,670 430,249 352,852

Property and equipment, net 957,193 888,069 680,059 564,271 425,524
Current assets to current liabilities 1.6:1 1.5:1 1.5:1 1.4:1 1.3:1
Debt to total capitalization 27.7% 28.4% 26.2% 26.9% 27.5%
Book value per share $0,0012.75 $0,0010.88 $0,0009.40 $0,0008.67 $0,0006.52
Stock price range (high) 56.75 43.25 40.38 26.31 20.88
Stock price range (low) 28.94 30.81 23.25 17.63 11.67

FY94 FY95 FY96 FY97 FY98

2.9

3.8

4.7

5.6

6.6

Total Revenues
In Billions of Dollars

0

94 95 96 97 98

912

1,291

1,420

1,670

2,001

Stockholders’ Equity
In Millions of Dollars

0
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Fiscal Year

In thousands except per - share amounts 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994

Revenues $6,600,838 $5,616,048 $4,740,760 $3,788,026 $2,896,390

Costs of services 5,149,218 4,413,173 3,692,267 2,961,955 2,268,655
Selling, general and administrative 602,708 485,113 471,309 383,973 294,641
Depreciation and amortization 386,854 333,247 272,058 190,240 146,602
Interest, net 42,096 32,273 32,143 27,304 12,979
Special charges 229,093 48,929 76,053 3,740 48,592

Total costs and expenses 6,409,969 5,312,735 4,543,830 3,567,212 2,771,469

Income before taxes 190,869 303,313 196,930 220,814 124,921
Taxes on income (69,500) 110,900 87,499 77,577 57,499

Income before cumulative effect of 
accounting change 260,369 192,413 109,431 143,237 67,422

Cumulative effect of accounting 
change for income taxes 4,900

Net income $0,260,369 $0,192,413 $0,109,431 $0,143,237 $0,072,322

Basic earnings per common share 
before cumulative effect of 
accounting change $0,0001.68 $0,0001.27 $0,0000.74 $0,0001.02 $0,0000.50

Cumulative effect of accounting 
change for income taxes 0.04

Basic earnings per common share $0,0001.68 $0,0001.27 $0,0000.74 $0,0001.02 $0,0000.54

Diluted earnings per common share 
before cumulative effect of 
accounting change $0,0001.64 $0,0001.23 $0,0000.71 $0,0001.00 $0,0000.49

Cumulative effect of accounting 
change for income taxes 0.04

Diluted earnings per common share $0,0001.64 $0,0001.23 $0,0000.71 $0,0001.00 $0,0000.53

Average common shares outstanding 155,125 151,895 148,865 140,297 134,265
Average common shares outstanding 

assuming dilution 158,526 156,394 153,070 143,702 136,733

Notes: A discussion of “Income Before Taxes” and “Net Income and Earnings per Share” before and after special items is included in
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”). A discussion of “Special Items”
for the three fiscal years ended 1998 is also included in MD&A. The fiscal 1995 special charge of $3,740 (1 cent per share after tax)
relates to the sale of the Company’s tax processing operations. The fiscal 1994 special charge of $48,592 (28 cents per share after tax)
relates to two acquisitions by Continuum.

The selected financial data has been restated for fiscal 1994 through 1996 to include the results of business combinations accounted for
as poolings of interests. Per - share amounts and shares are restated for a two - for -one stock split, paid in the form of a 100% stock divi-
dend on March 23, 1998.

No dividends were paid by CSC. A fiscal 1996 acquisition, accounted for as a pooling of interests, paid dividends of $.17 per share
during fiscal 1994 and 1995.



Board of Directors and Officers of the Company

Directors

Van B. Honeycutt (1993)
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer, CSC1

Irving W. Bailey, II (1992)
President, Bailey Capital Corporation
Former Chairman and 
Chief Executive Officer 
Providian Corporation3

William R. Hoover (1968)
Chairman of the Executive Committee1

Former Chairman, President 
and Chief Executive Officer, CSC

Committee Memberships
1. Executive
2. Audit
3. Compensation
Date in parentheses indicates year director was first 
elected to the board

Richard C. Lawton (1986)
President and Chief Executive Officer
Chandler’s Palos Verdes Sand & 
Gravel Company and
Former President and Director 
Transmix Corporation2

Leon J. Level (1989)
Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer, CSC1

Thomas A. McDonnell (1997)
President and Chief Executive Officer
DST Systems Inc.2

F. Warren McFarlan (1989)
Senior Associate Dean, Director of
External Relations and Albert H.
Gordon Professor of Business
Administration 
Harvard University Graduate School 
of Business Administration2

James R. Mellor (1992)
Former Chairman and 
Chief Executive Officer 
General Dynamics Corporation3

William P. Rutledge (1997)
Former President and 
Chief Executive Officer 
Allegheny Teledyne, Inc.3

Officers

Van B. Honeycutt
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Harvey N. Bernstein
Vice President and
Deputy General Counsel

Edward P. Boykin
Vice President

Milton E. Cooper
Vice President and 
President, Federal Sector

Scott M. Delanty
Vice President and Controller

Hayward D. Fisk
Vice President, General Counsel 
and Secretary

Leon J. Level
Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Ronald W. Mackintosh
Vice President and President
European Group

Thomas R. Madison, Jr.
Vice President and President
Financial Services Group

Paul T. Tucker
Vice President,
Corporate Development

C. Bruce Plowman
Vice President, Corporate and
Marketing Communications

Thomas Williams
Vice President and President 
Chemical, Oil & Gas Group
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Corporate Office

2100 East Grand Avenue
El Segundo, California 90245
Telephone 310.615.0311

Consulting Group

29 Sawyer Road
Waltham 
Massachusetts 02154

James P. Saviano, President
Telephone 781.647.0116

Integrated Business Services

3170 Fairview Park Drive
Falls Church, Virginia 22042 

Gerard E. Dubé, President  
Telephone 703.876.1000

Technology Management Group

3170 Fairview Park Drive
Falls Church, Virginia 22042

Paul M. Cofoni, President
Telephone 703.876.1000

Global Infrastructure Group

3170 Fairview Park Drive
Falls Church, Virginia 22042

Bernard J. Breen, President
Telephone 703.876.1000

Chemical, Oil & Gas Group

400 Commerce Drive
Newark, Delaware 19713

Thomas Williams, President
Telephone 302.391.6000

Credit Services

652 North Belt East, Suite 400
Houston, Texas 77060

Robert M. Denny, President
Telephone 281.878.1900

CSC Pinnacle Alliance

c/o J. P. Morgan
75 Wall Street, 10th Floor
New York, New York 10260

James D. Cook, President
Telephone 212.235.5607

Financial Services Group

9500 Arboretum Boulevard
Austin, Texas 78759

Thomas R. Madison, Jr., President
Telephone 512.345.5700

Healthcare Group

1675 Broadway, 18th Floor 
New York, New York 10019

Arthur H. Spiegel III, President
Telephone 212.903.9300

Federal Sector

3170 Fairview Park Drive
Falls Church, Virginia 22042

Milton E. Cooper, President
Telephone 703.876.1000

Australian Group

Sydney, Australia
460 Pacific Highway
St. Leonards, NSW 2065

Peter F. Rehn
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer
Telephone 61(0)2.9901.1111

European Group

279 Farnborough Road
Farnborough
Hampshire GU147LS
United Kingdom

Ronald W. Mackintosh, President 
Telephone 44(0)1252.363000
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Shareholder and Investor Information

Shareholder Services
Registered shareholders with questions concerning the transfer or registration of their shares may call CSC’s Shareholder
Relations office at (800) 542-3070.

For prompt assistance on address changes, consolidation of duplicate accounts or related matters, shareholders should
contact ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, P.O. Box 3315, South Hackensack, New Jersey 07660, USA (800) 526-0801 
Foreign (201) 329-8660. http://www.chasemellon.com

The company’s annual report to the Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K is available without exhibits at
no charge upon written request to CSC’s Investor Relations department.

Company literature is available via CSC’s automated request line (310) 615-4455 or facsimile service (800) 962-7328.

Financial Community Information
Inquiries from institutional investors, financial analysts, and portfolio managers should be directed to J. Spencer Davis,
Director, Investor Relations, (310) 615-1700.

Inquires from individual shareholders and registered representatives should be directed to Lisa M. Prukop, Supervisor,
Investor Relations, (310) 615-1680.

Registrar and Transfer Agent
ChaseMellon Shareholder Services 
85 Challenger Road
Ridgefield Park, New Jersey 07660

Annual Meeting
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders
will be held at 2 p.m. on Monday,
August 10, 1998, at the Sheraton
Gateway Hotel, Los Angeles Airport,
6101 Century Blvd. Proxies for the
meeting will be solicited in a separate
proxy statement.

Auditors
Deloitte & Touche LLP
1000 Wilshire Boulevard
Los Angeles, California 90017

Shareholders
As of June 17, 1998, CSC had
approximately 81,500 shareholders,
including 8,879 shareholders 
of record. 

Stock Traded (CSC)

New York Stock Exchange
Pacific Exchange
Boston Stock Exchange
Chicago Stock Exchange
Philadelphia Stock Exchange

Internet

CSC’s home page address on the Internet
is http://www.csc.com

E-mail inquiries are welcomed. 
CSC’s Internet address is: 
InvestorRelations@csc.com

Market Price Data Per Quarter
The table below shows the high and low intra-day prices of CSC’s common stock on the composite tape of the New York
Stock Exchange for each quarter during the last two calendar years and through June 17, 1998.

1998 1997 1996

Calendar Quarter High Low High Low High Low

1st 56 3⁄4 39 31⁄32 413⁄16 3013⁄16 40 3⁄8 32 9⁄16

2nd 59 7⁄8* 491⁄8* 401⁄16 2815⁄16 39 3⁄4 34 1⁄16

3rd 419⁄16 3411⁄22 38 5⁄8 32 1⁄16

4th 437⁄81 3325⁄82 431⁄4 351⁄16

*Through June 17, 1998.
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ACG Case Mix Adjustment, Catalyst 2000, CSC Catalyst, CSC E~Wave, CSC Fusion, CSC Lynx, COGEN, INFOSEC and PharmIQ are registered service marks of
Computer Sciences Corporation. 

CAMS II, COLOSSUS, Focal Point, GraphTalk, HYDRA and SICS NT are registered trademarks of Computer Sciences Corporation. 
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